

SIXTY SEVENTH LEGISLATURE - REGULAR SESSION

FIFTY THIRD DAY

House Chamber, Olympia, Thursday, March 3, 2022

The House was called to order at 9:00 a.m. by the Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding). The Clerk called the roll and a quorum was present.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) led the Chamber in the Pledge of Allegiance. The prayer was offered by Rabbi Bruce Kadden, Temple Beth El, Tacoma, Washington.

Reading of the Journal of the previous day was dispensed with and it was ordered to stand approved.

There being no objection, the House advanced to the third order of business.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

March 2, 2022

Mme. SPEAKER:

The Senate has passed:

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1724,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1832,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1833,
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1867,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1934,
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1941,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1974,
HOUSE BILL NO. 2033,
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 2064,

and the same are herewith transmitted.

Sarah Bannister, Secretary

March 2, 2022

Mme. SPEAKER:

The Senate has passed:

HOUSE BILL NO. 1613,
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1642,
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1716,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1953,

and the same are herewith transmitted.

Sarah Bannister, Secretary

March 2, 2022

Mme. SPEAKER:

The President has signed:

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1052,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1122,
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1124,
ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1165,
SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1210,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1280,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1612,
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1619,
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1623,
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1626,
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1649,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1669,
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1675,
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1705,
ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1744,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1755,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1761,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1769,
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1793,
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1794,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1834,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1874,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1894,
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 2046,
HOUSE BILL NO. 2061,
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 2068,

and the same are herewith transmitted.

Sarah Bannister, Secretary

There being no objection, the House advanced to the fourth order of business.

INTRODUCTION & FIRST READING

HB 2135 by Representatives Stokesbary, MacEwen, Griffey, Rude, Dufault, Walsh, Shewmake, Jacobsen, Kraft, Hoff, Gilday, Chambers, Robertson, Peterson, Maycumber, Vick, Kretz, Corry, Boehnke, Klippert, Fitzgibbon, Dye, Schmick, Barkis, Caldier, Wicks, Klicker, Steele, Walen, Graham, Ybarra, Leavitt, Paul and Eslick

AN ACT Relating to directing state agencies and authorities to divest public funds supporting Russia; adding a new section to chapter 43.33A RCW; adding a new chapter to Title 39 RCW; creating a new section; and declaring an emergency.

Referred to Committee on State Government & Tribal Relations.

There being no objection, the bill listed on the day's introduction sheet under the fourth order of business was referred to the committee so designated.

There being no objection, the House advanced to the sixth order of business.

SECOND READING

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5878, by Senate Committee on Early Learning & K-12 Education (originally sponsored by Rolfes, Wellman, Hunt, Lovick, Nobles and Wilson, C.)

Clarifying visual and performing arts instruction.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Education was before the House for purpose of amendment. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 46, February 24, 2022).

Representative McEntire moved the adoption of amendment (1227) to the committee striking amendment:

On page 2, line 33 of the striking amendment, after "year," strike "public schools" and insert "school districts with more than 200 enrolled students"

On page 3, line 7 of the striking amendment, after "(3)" strike "Arts" and insert "(a) Except as provided in (b) of this subsection, arts"

On page 3, after line 10 of the striking amendment, insert the following:

"(b) A person holding a limited teaching certificate may provide arts instruction while either: (i) The school district recruits and hires a certificated teacher with the qualifications provided in (a) of this subsection; or (ii) the certificated teacher with qualifications provided in (a) of this subsection takes leave as provided in the school district's written leave policy required by RCW 28A.400.300."

On page 3, beginning on line 24 of the striking amendment, strike all of subsection (6)

On page 3, line 25 of the striking amendment, after "28A.150.010." insert the following:

"NEW SECTION. Sec. 4. A new section is added to chapter 28A.710 RCW to read as follows:

Section 3 of this act, related to arts instruction, governs school operation and management under RCW 28A.710.040 and applies to charter schools with more than

200 enrolled students established under this chapter.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 5. A new section is added to chapter 28A.715 RCW to read as follows:

Section 3 of this act, related to arts instruction, governs school operation and management under RCW 28A.715.020 and applies to state-tribal education compact schools with more than 200 enrolled students established under this chapter."

Representatives McEntire and Santos spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment to the committee striking amendment.

Amendment (1227) to the committee striking amendment, was adopted.

Representative Santos moved the adoption of amendment (1275) to the committee striking amendment:

On page 2, line 37 of the striking amendment, after "elementary" insert "and middle"

Representatives Santos and Ybarra spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment to the committee striking amendment.

Amendment (1275) to the committee striking amendment, was adopted.

The committee striking amendment, as amended, was adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Santos, Ybarra, McEntire, Harris, Dye, MacEwen and Maycumber spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representatives Schmick and Kraft spoke against the passage of the bill.

MOTIONS

On motion of Representative Wicks, Representative Wylie was excused.

On motion of Representative Griffey, Representative Chandler was excused.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill No. 5878, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill No. 5878, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 92; Nays, 4; Absent, 0; Excused, 2.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Klippert, Kraft, Orcutt and Schmick.

Excused: Representatives Chandler and Wylie.

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5878, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

ENGROSSED SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5764, by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Randall, Sheldon, Conway, Das, Hasegawa, Keiser, Kuderer, Liias, Nguyen, Nobles, Saldaña, Wellman, Wilson, C. and Wilson, J.)

Concerning apprenticeships and higher education.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Appropriations was adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 50, February 28, 2022).

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Slatter and Chambers spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5764, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5764, as

amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 94; Nays, 2; Absent, 0; Excused, 2.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Ybarra and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Kraft and Young.

Excused: Representatives Chandler and Wylie.

ENGROSSED SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5764, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

STATEMENT FOR THE JOURNAL

I intended to vote NAY on Engrossed Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5764.

Representative Dufault, 15th District

SECOND READING

SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5789, by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Randall, Nobles, Conway, Das, Frockt, Kuderer, Liias, Nguyen and Wilson, C.)

Creating the Washington career and college pathways innovation challenge program.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on College & Workforce Development was not adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 46, February 24, 2022).

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Appropriations was adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 50, February 28, 2022).

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Hansen and Chambers spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of

Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5789, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5789, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 77; Nays, 19; Absent, 0; Excused, 2.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chapman, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goodman, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Walen, Wicks, Wilcox and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Boehnke, Chase, Dent, Dufault, Goehner, Graham, Hoff, Klicker, Klippert, Kraft, MacEwen, McEntire, Rude, Sutherland, Vick, Volz, Walsh, Ybarra and Young.

Excused: Representatives Chandler and Wylie.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5789, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5785, by Senate Committee on Human Services, Reentry & Rehabilitation (originally sponsored by Lovelett, Wilson, C., Das, Dhingra, Hasegawa, Nobles, Saldaña and Stanford)

Concerning transitional food assistance.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Peterson and Gilday spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5785.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5785, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 96; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody,

Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representative Dufault.

Excused: Representative Wylie.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5785, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5529, by Senators Cleveland, Keiser, Dhingra and Wilson, C.

Concerning self-directed care.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Health Care & Wellness was adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 46, February 24, 2022).

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Cody and Schmick spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5529, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5529, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 96; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier,

Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representative Kraft.

Excused: Representative Wylie.

SENATE BILL NO. 5529, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5874, by Senate Committee on Higher Education & Workforce Development (originally sponsored by Nobles, Randall, Conway, Keiser, Lovelett, Lovick, Nguyen, Stanford, Van De Wege and Wilson, C.)

Concerning residency of students affiliated with the military.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on College & Workforce Development was not adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 46, February 24, 2022).

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Appropriations was adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 50, February 28, 2022).

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Leavitt and Chambers spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill No. 5874, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill No. 5874, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier,

Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Excused: Representative Wylie.

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5874, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5504, by Senators Warnick, Van De Wege, Billig, Conway, Das, Lovelett, Mullet, Nguyen, Randall, Saldaña, Wagoner, Wilson, J. and Wilson, L.

Extending current discover pass free days from state parks to all state recreation sites and lands.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Boehnke and Paul spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5504.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5504, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Excused: Representative Wylie.

SENATE BILL NO. 5504, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5589, by Senate Committee on Health & Long Term Care (originally sponsored by Robinson, Cleveland, Frocht and Randall)

Concerning statewide spending on primary care.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Riccelli and Schmick spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5589.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5589, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 96; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representative Kraft.
Excused: Representative Wylie.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5589, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5508, by Senators Liias, Muzzall, Cleveland, Frockt, Hunt, Lovick, Mullet, Randall, Robinson and Stanford

Concerning the insurance guaranty fund.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Cody and Schmick spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5508.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5508, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Excused: Representative Wylie.

SENATE BILL NO. 5508, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5539, by Senators Hunt and Wilson, C.

Concerning state funding for educational service districts.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representative Bergquist spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representative Stokesbary spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5539.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5539, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 80; Nays, 17; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Bronoske, Callan, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, McCaslin, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer,

Steele, Stonier, Sullivan, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Walen, Wicks, Wilcox, Ybarra and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Boehnke, Caldier, Chambers, Dent, Dufault, Jacobsen, Klippert, Maycumber, McEntire, Robertson, Schmick, Stokesbary, Sutherland, Vick, Volz, Walsh and Young.

Excused: Representative Wylie.

SENATE BILL NO. 5539, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5687, by Senators Wilson, C., Liias, Billig, Das, Nguyen, Pedersen, Saldaña and Stanford

Addressing certain traffic safety improvements.

The bill was read the second time.

Representative Fey moved the adoption of amendment (1324):

On page 4, beginning on line 29, strike all of sections 4, 5, 6, and 7

Correct the title.

Representatives Fey and Barkis spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (1324) was adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representative Wicks spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representatives Barkis, Klippert and Walsh spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5687, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5687, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 55; Nays, 42; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Bronoske, Callan, Chandler, Chopp, Cody, Davis, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dye, Entenman, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Gregerson, Hackney, Hansen, Harris-Talley, J. Johnson, Kirby, Kloba, Leavitt, Lekanoff, Macri, Morgan, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Ryu, Santos, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Stonier, Sullivan, Taylor, Thai, Valdez, Walen, Wicks and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Boehnke, Caldier, Chambers, Chapman, Chase, Corry, Dent, Dufault, Eslick, Gilday, Goehner, Graham, Griffey, Harris, Hoff, Jacobsen, Klicker, Klippert, Kraft, Kretz, MacEwen, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Schmick, Steele, Stokesbary, Sutherland, Tharinger, Vick, Volz, Walsh, Wilcox, Ybarra and Young.

Excused: Representative Wylie.

SENATE BILL NO. 5687, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5565, by Senators Sheldon, Rolfes, Lovick and Mullet

Allowing fire districts and regional fire authorities to carry out certain treasurer functions.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Griffey and Duerr spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5565.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5565, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Excused: Representative Wylie.

SENATE BILL NO. 5565, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

POINT OF PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

Representative Griffey acknowledged that Senate Bill No. 5565 was Senator Sheldon's final piece of legislation.

The Speaker assumed the chair.

There being no objection, the House advanced to the eighth order of business.

MOTION

There being no objection, the Committee on Rules was relieved of the following bills and the bills were placed on the second reading calendar:

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5933
 ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO.
 5847
 SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5814
 SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5729
 SENATE BILL NO. 5657
 SENATE BILL NO. 5510
 SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5616
 SENATE BILL NO. 5634
 SENATE BILL NO. 5505
 ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1990
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1988
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1914
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1850
 ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO.
 5593
 SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5907
 SENATE BILL NO. 5972

The Speaker called upon Representative Bronoske to preside.

There being no objection, the House reverted to the sixth order of business.

SECOND READING

SENATE BILL NO. 5895, by Senators Frockt and Mullet

Concerning timing restrictions for remedial action grants to local government.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Tharinger and Steele spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5895.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5895, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 98; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

SENATE BILL NO. 5895, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5649, by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Robinson, Conway, Lovick, Randall and Wilson, C.)

Modifying the Washington state paid family and medical leave act.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Labor & Workplace Standards was not adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 46, February 24, 2022).

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Appropriations was before the House for purpose of amendment. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 50, February 28, 2022).

Representative Sullivan moved the adoption of amendment (1338) to the committee striking amendment:

On page 19, line 11 of the striking amendment, after "(3)" strike "(a)"

On page 19, beginning on line 14 of the striking amendment, beginning with "(b)" strike all material through "2022." on line 15

Representatives Sullivan and Hoff spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment to the committee striking amendment.

Amendment (1338) to the committee striking amendment, was adopted.

The committee striking amendment, as amended, was adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Berry and Hoff spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5649, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5649, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 96; Nays, 2; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Dufault and Kraft.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5649, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5929, by Senators Wilson, C. and Nguyen

Changing the membership of the legislative-executive WorkFirst poverty reduction oversight task force.

The bill was read the second time.

With the consent of the House, amendment (1304) was withdrawn.

Representative Jacobsen moved the adoption of amendment (1321):

On page 4, after line 2, insert the following:

"Sec. 2. RCW 74.08A.510 and 2018 c 126 s 4 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) To assist the task force established in RCW 74.08A.505, there is created the intergenerational poverty advisory committee.

(2) The advisory committee must include diverse, statewide representation from public, nonprofit, and for-profit entities. The committee membership must reflect regional, racial, and cultural diversity to adequately represent the needs of all children and families in the state.

(3) Members of the advisory committee are appointed by the secretary, with the approval of the task force.

(4) The advisory committee must include representatives from:

(a) Advocacy groups that focus on childhood poverty issues;

(b) Advocacy groups that focus on education and early childhood education issues;

(c) Academic experts in childhood poverty, education, or early childhood education issues;

(d) Faith-based organizations that address childhood poverty, education, or early childhood education issues;

(e) Tribal governments;

(f) Families impacted by poverty;

(g) Local government representatives that address childhood poverty or education issues;

(h) The business community;

(i) A group representing accredited financial counselors;

(j) A subject matter expert in infant mental health;

~~((+))~~ (k) The department of children, youth, and families; and

~~((+))~~ (l) The department.

(5) Each member of the advisory committee is appointed for a four-year term unless a member is appointed to complete an unexpired term. The secretary may adjust the length of term at the time of appointment or reappointment so that approximately one-half of the advisory committee is appointed every two years.

(6) The secretary may remove an advisory committee member:

(a) If the member is unable or unwilling to carry out the member's assigned responsibilities; or

(b) For good cause.

(7) If a vacancy occurs in the advisory committee membership for any reason, a replacement may be appointed for the unexpired term.

(8) The advisory committee shall choose cochaIRS from among its membership. The secretary shall convene the initial meeting of the advisory committee.

(9) A majority of the advisory committee constitutes a quorum of the advisory committee at any meeting and the action of the majority of members present is the action of the advisory committee.

(10) The advisory committee shall:

(a) Meet quarterly at the request of the task force cochaIRS or the cochaIRS of the advisory committee;

(b) Make recommendations to the task force on how the task force and the state can effectively address the needs of children affected by intergenerational poverty and achieve the purposes and duties of the task force as described in RCW 74.08A.505;

(c) Ensure that the advisory committee's recommendations to the task force are supported by verifiable data; and

(d) Gather input from diverse communities about the impact of intergenerational poverty on outcomes such as education, health care, employment, involvement in the child welfare system, and other related areas.

(11) The department shall provide staff support to the advisory committee and shall endeavor to accommodate the participation needs of its members. Accommodations may include considering the location and time of committee meetings, making options available for remote participation by members, and convening meetings of the committee in locations with proximity to available child care whenever feasible.

(12) Members of the advisory committee may receive reimbursement for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060."

Correct the title.

Representatives Jacobsen and Peterson spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (1321) was adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Peterson and Gilday spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5929, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5929, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 67; Nays, 31; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chandler, Chapman, Chopp, Cody, Davis, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Entenman, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Gregerson, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, J. Johnson, Kirby, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, Macri, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Walen, Wicks, Wylie, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Barkis, Boehnke, Chambers, Chase, Corry, Dent, Dufault, Dye, Eslick, Gilday, Goehner, Graham, Griffey, Jacobsen, Klicker, Klippert, Kraft, MacEwen, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Orcutt, Robertson, Schmick, Steele, Sutherland, Vick, Volz, Walsh, Wilcox and Ybarra.

SENATE BILL NO. 5929, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5788, by Senators Pedersen, Padden, Dhingra and Lovick

Concerning guardianship of minors.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Civil Rights & Judiciary was adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 46, February 24, 2022).

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Hansen and Walsh spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5788, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5788, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representative Kraft.

SENATE BILL NO. 5788, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5790, by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Braun, Conway, Fortunato, Frockt, King, Lovelett, Lovick, Muzzall, Randall, Rivers, Short and Wilson, L.)

Strengthening critical community support services for individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Appropriations was adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 50, February 28, 2022).

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Gilday and Taylor spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5790, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5790, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 98; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5790, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5819, by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Braun, Brown, Conway, Dozier, Frockt, Keiser, Randall, Rivers, Saldaña, Short, Trudeau, Warnick and Wilson, L.)

Concerning the developmental disabilities administration's no-paid services caseload.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Appropriations was adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 50, February 28, 2022).

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Gilday and Leavitt spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5819, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5819, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 98; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5819, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5933, by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Frockt, Schoesler, Conway, Honeyford, Keiser, Lovelett, Mullet, Pedersen, Rolfes and Wilson, J.)

Establishing a school seismic safety grant program.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Tharinger and Steele spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5933.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5933, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 98; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick,

Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5933, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5847, by Senate Committee on Higher Education & Workforce Development (originally sponsored by Lias, Randall, Das, Hasegawa, Keiser, Kuderer, Lovick, Nguyen, Nobles, Saldaña and Wilson, C.)

Providing information to public service employees about the public service loan forgiveness program.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on College & Workforce Development was not adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 46, February 24, 2022).

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Appropriations was adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 50, February 28, 2022).

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Pollet, Chambers and Jacobsen spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representative Dufault spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill No. 5847, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill No. 5847, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 66; Nays, 32; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chapman, Chopp, Cody, Davis, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris-Talley, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Kloba, Leavitt, Lekanoff, Macri, Morgan, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Walen, Wicks, Wylie and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Abbarno, Boehnke, Chambers, Chandler, Chase, Corry, Dent, Dufault, Dye,

Gilday, Goehner, Graham, Harris, Hoff, Klicker, Klippert, Kraft, Kretz, MacEwen, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Steele, Sutherland, Vick, Volz, Walsh, Wilcox, Ybarra and Young.

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5847, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5814, by Senate Committee on Human Services, Reentry & Rehabilitation (originally sponsored by Cleveland, Dhingra, Keiser, Lovelett, Lovick and Wilson, C.)

Providing funding for medical evaluations of suspected victims of child abuse.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Stonier, Caldier and Rule spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5814.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5814, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 98; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5814, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5729, by Senate Committee on Human Services, Reentry & Rehabilitation (originally sponsored by Nguyen, Das, Hasegawa, Kuderer, Nobles, Robinson, Saldaña, Stanford, Trudeau and Wilson, C.)

Creating a good cause exception to administrative hearing deadlines for applicants or recipients of certain public assistance benefits.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Housing, Human Services & Veterans was before the House for purpose of amendment. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 46, February 24, 2022).

Representative Peterson moved the adoption of amendment (1287) to the committee striking amendment:

On page 6, after line 24 of the striking amendment, insert the following:

"NEW SECTION. Sec. 4. This act takes effect July 1, 2023."

Representatives Peterson and Gilday spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment to the committee striking amendment.

Amendment (1287) to the committee striking amendment, was adopted.

The committee striking amendment, as amended, was adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Peterson and Gilday spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5729, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5729, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 98; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake,

Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5729, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5657, by Senators Wellman, Hunt, Gildon, Hasegawa, Mullet, Nguyen, Nobles, Rivers and Wilson, C.

Concerning computer science instruction in state long-term juvenile institutions.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Education was adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 46, February 24, 2022).

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Callan, Ybarra and Frame spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representatives Dufault and Walsh spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5657, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5657, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 87; Nays, 11; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Abbarno, Boehnke, Chandler, Dufault, Kraft, McCaslin, McEntire, Orcutt, Sutherland, Walsh and Young.

SENATE BILL NO. 5657, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5616, by Senate Committee on Transportation (originally sponsored by Rolfes)

Concerning accounts.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Bergquist and Stokesbary spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5616.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5616, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representative Kraft.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5616, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5593, by Senate Committee on Housing & Local Government (originally sponsored by Short, Lovelett, Gildon, Hasegawa and Mullet)

Concerning urban growth area boundaries.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Local Government was not

adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 46, February 24, 2022).

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Goehner, Pollet, Corry and Dufault spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill No. 5593.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill No. 5593, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 98; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5593, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5972, by Senators Warnick and Van De Wege

Concerning extending the expiration date of a statute dealing with wildlife conflict resolution.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Volz, Valdez, Dent and Volz (again) spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5972.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5972, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representative Kraft.

SENATE BILL NO. 5972, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5883, by Senate Committee on Law & Justice (originally sponsored by Trudeau, Keiser, Billig, Conway, Hunt, Kuderer, Nguyen, Nobles, Robinson, Saldaña, Van De Wege and Wilson, C.)

Concerning an unaccompanied homeless youth's ability to provide informed consent for that minor patient's own health care, including nonemergency, outpatient, and primary care services, including physical examinations, vision examinations and eyeglasses, dental examinations, hearing examinations and hearing aids, immunizations, treatments for illnesses and conditions, and routine follow-up care customarily provided by a health care provider in an outpatient setting, excluding elective surgeries.

The bill was read the second time.

With the consent of the House, amendment (1298) was withdrawn.

Representative Eslick moved the adoption of amendment (1297):

On page 6, beginning on line 12, after "is" strike all material through "majority" on line 13 and insert "age 14 through age 17"

Representatives Eslick, Dent, Dufault and Caldier spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Representative Harris-Talley spoke against the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (1297) was not adopted.

Representative McCaslin moved the adoption of amendment (1303):

On page 6, beginning on line 29, after "provider" strike all material through "discretion," on line 30 and insert "shall"

On page 6, beginning on line 31, after "youth." strike all material through "documentation." On line 32

On page 7, beginning at the beginning of line 4, strike all material through "patient." on line 9

Renumber the remaining subsections consecutively and correct any internal references accordingly.

Representatives McCaslin, Dufault, Klippert, Abbarno, Graham, Dent and McCaslin (again) spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Representatives Ortiz-Self and Senn spoke against the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (1303) was not adopted.

Representative Dent moved the adoption of amendment (1293):

On page 7, beginning on line 10, after "(d)" strike all material through "situation" on line 17 and insert "A health care provider or health care facility that provided services to an unaccompanied homeless youth under subsection (3) of this section is not liable in a criminal or civil action, and not subject to professional or other disciplinary action, for accepting the informed consent of an unaccompanied homeless youth authorized under subsection (3) of this section if the provider or facility has relied upon the documentation described under subsection (3)(b) of this section. The limitation on liability provided in this subsection only limits liability stemming from a health care provider or health care facility not obtaining consent as described in RCW 7.70.030(3)"

Representatives Dent, Dufault, Jacobsen, Walsh and Abbarno spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Representative Hansen spoke against the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (1293) was not adopted.

Representative Mosbrucker moved the adoption of amendment (1332):

On page 7, after line 22, insert the following:

"(f) During a visit with an unaccompanied homeless youth who provides informed consent authorized under this subsection (3), a primary care provider as defined under RCW 74.09.010 shall use existing best practices that align with any guidelines developed by the office of crime victims advocacy established in RCW 43.280.080 and the commercially sexually exploited children statewide coordinating committee established under RCW 7.68.801 designed to identify:

(i) Whether the unaccompanied homeless youth may be a victim of human trafficking; and

(ii) Potential referral to additional services, the department of children, youth, and families, or law enforcement."

Representatives Mosbrucker and Senn spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (1332) was adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Senn, Ortiz-Self and Harris-Talley spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representatives Dent, Dufault, Graham, Klippert, Caldier, Chase, Chambers and Kraft spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5883, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5883, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 57; Nays, 41; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Bronoske, Callan, Chapman, Chopp, Cody, Davis, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Entenman, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Gregerson, Hackney, Hansen, Harris-Talley, J. Johnson, Kirby, Kloba, Leavitt, Lekanoff, Macri, Morgan, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Stonier, Sullivan, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Walen, Wicks, Wylie and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Boehnke, Calder, Chambers, Chandler, Chase, Corry, Dent, Dufault, Dye, Eslick, Gilday, Goehner, Graham, Griffey, Harris, Hoff, Jacobsen, Klicker, Klippert, Kraft, Kretz, MacEwen, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Robertson, Rude, Schmick, Steele, Stokesbary, Sutherland, Vick, Volz, Walsh, Wilcox, Ybarra and Young.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5883, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

The Speaker (Representative Bronoske presiding) called upon Representative Orwall to preside.

There being no objection, the House reverted to the third order of business.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

March 3, 2022

Mme. SPEAKER:

The Senate has passed:

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1717,
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1747,
ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1752,
ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1784,
HOUSE BILL NO. 1888,
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1980,
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1984,
HOUSE BILL NO. 2074,

and the same are herewith transmitted.

Sarah Bannister, Secretary

March 3, 2022

Mme. SPEAKER:

The President has signed:

SENATE BILL NO. 5518,
SENATE BILL NO. 5545,
SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5575,
SENATE BILL NO. 5602,
SENATE BILL NO. 5617,
SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5631,
SENATE BILL NO. 5676,
ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 5800,
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5815,
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5853,
SENATE BILL NO. 5866,
SENATE BILL NO. 5875,
SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5890,
SENATE BILL NO. 5931,
SENATE BILL NO. 5940,

and the same are herewith transmitted.

Sarah Bannister, Secretary

There being no objection, the House advanced to the eighth order of business.

MOTION

There being no objection, the Committee on Rules was relieved of the following bills and the bills were placed on the second reading calendar:

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5818
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO.
5268
SENATE JOINT MEMORIAL NO. 8006
SENATE BILL NO. 5844
SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5644
SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5756
SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5728

There being no objection, the House reverted to the sixth order of business.

SECOND READING

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5722, by Senate Committee on Environment, Energy & Technology (originally sponsored by Nguyen, Liias, Lovelett, Nobles, Pedersen, Saldaña and Stanford)

Reducing greenhouse gas emissions in buildings.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Appropriations was not adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 50, February 28, 2022).

With the consent of the House, amendments (1299) and (1274) were withdrawn.

Representative Hackney moved the adoption of striking amendment (1302):

Strike everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

"NEW SECTION. Sec. 1. The legislature finds that in order to meet the statewide greenhouse gas emissions limits in RCW 70A.45.020, the state must require performance standards for existing buildings.

In order to have a comprehensive understanding of the need and potential for updating the state's building stock, including the "split incentive issue" in which tenants are responsible for energy costs and building owners are responsible for choices about energy systems and building maintenance, more robust benchmarking and reporting for building performance, operations, and maintenance

is needed. While the state has adopted comprehensive reporting requirements for larger buildings, it currently lacks similar requirements for smaller buildings. It is the intent of the legislature to extend existing building benchmarking, energy management, and operations and maintenance planning requirements to smaller commercial and multifamily residential buildings in order to assess the needs and opportunities for job creation and incentives and environmental and public health improvements.

The legislature further finds that in order to meet the statewide greenhouse gas emissions limits in the energy sectors of the economy, more resources must be directed toward achieving decarbonization of building heating and cooling loads, while continuing to relieve energy burdens that exist in overburdened communities. These resources must include comprehensive customer support, outreach, and technical assistance. These efforts must include notifying building owners of requirements through communications campaigns, providing resources to aid in compliance, and delivering training to equip building owners, and the industry, to be successful.

Sec. 2. RCW 19.27A.200 and 2019 c 285 s 2 are each amended to read as follows:

The definitions in this section apply throughout RCW 19.27A.210, 19.27A.220, 19.27A.230, ~~((and))~~ 19.27A.240, and sections 3 and 4 of this act unless the context clearly requires otherwise.

(1) "Agricultural structure" means a structure designed and constructed to house farm implements, hay, grain, poultry, livestock, or other horticultural products, and that is not a place used by the public or a place of human habitation or employment where agricultural products are processed, treated, or packaged.

(2) "Baseline energy use intensity" means a building's ~~((weather normalized))~~ energy use intensity ~~((measured the previous year to making an application for an incentive under RCW 19.27A.220))~~ that is representative of energy use in a normal weather year.

(3) (a) "Building owner" means an individual or entity possessing title to a building.

(b) In the event of a land lease, "building owner" means the entity possessing title to the building on leased land.

(4) "Building tenant" means a person or entity occupying or holding possession of a building or premises pursuant to a rental agreement.

(5) "Conditional compliance" means a temporary compliance method used by covered building owners that demonstrate the owner has implemented energy use reduction strategies required by the standard, but has not demonstrated full compliance with the energy use intensity target.

(6) "Consumer-owned utility" has the same meaning as defined in RCW 19.27A.140.

(7) "Covered ~~((commercial))~~ building" ~~((means a building where the sum of nonresidential, hotel, motel, and dormitory floor areas exceeds fifty thousand gross square feet, excluding the parking garage area))~~ includes a tier 1 covered building and a tier 2 covered building.

(8) "Department" means the department of commerce.

(9) "Director" means the director of the department of commerce or the director's designee.

(10) "Electric utility" means a consumer-owned electric utility or an investor-owned electric utility.

(11) "Eligible building owner" means: (a) The owner of a covered ~~((commercial))~~ building required to comply with the standard established in RCW 19.27A.210; or (b) ~~((the owner of a multifamily residential building where the floor area exceeds fifty thousand gross square feet, excluding the parking garage area))~~ all eligible tier 2 covered building owners.

(12) "Energy" includes: Electricity, including electricity delivered through the electric grid and electricity generated at the building premises using solar or wind energy resources; natural gas, including natural gas derived from renewable sources, synthetic sources, and fossil fuel sources; district steam; district hot water; district chilled water; propane; fuel oil; wood; coal; or other fuels used to meet the energy loads of a building.

(13) "Energy use intensity" means a measurement that normalizes a building's site energy use relative to its size. A building's energy use intensity is calculated by dividing the total net energy consumed in one year by the gross floor area of the building, excluding the parking garage. "Energy use intensity" is reported as a value of thousand British thermal units per square foot per year.

(14) "Energy use intensity target" means the target for net energy use intensity of a covered ((commercial)) building ((that has been established for the purposes of complying with the standard established under RCW 19.27A.210)).

(15) "Gas company" includes every corporation, company, association, joint stock association, partnership, and person, their lessees, trustees, or receiver appointed by any court whatsoever, and every city or town owning, controlling, operating, or managing any gas plant within this state.

(16) "Greenhouse gas" includes carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, and sulfur hexafluoride.

(17) (a) "Gross floor area" means the total number of square feet measured between the exterior surfaces of the enclosing fixed walls of a building, including all supporting functions such as offices, lobbies, restrooms, equipment storage areas, mechanical rooms, break rooms, and elevator shafts.

(b) "Gross floor area" does not include outside bays or docks.

(18) "Investor-owned utility" means a ((company owned by investors, that meets one of the definitions of RCW 80.04.010, and that is engaged in distributing electricity)) corporation owned by investors that meets the definition of "corporation" as defined in RCW 80.04.010 and is engaged in distributing either electricity or natural gas, or both, to more than one retail electric customer in the state.

(19) "Multifamily residential building" means a covered multifamily building containing sleeping units or more than ((two)) five dwelling units where occupants are primarily permanent in nature.

(20) "Net energy use" means the sum of metered and bulk fuel energy entering the

building, minus the sum of metered energy leaving the building or campus. Renewable energy produced on a campus that is not attached to a covered building may be included.

(21) "Qualifying utility" means a consumer-owned or investor-owned gas or electric utility that serves more than ((twenty-five thousand)) 25,000 customers in the state of Washington.

(22) "Savings-to-investment ratio" means the ratio of the total present value savings to the total present value costs of a bundle of an energy or water conservation measure estimated over the projected useful life of each measure. The numerator of the ratio is the present value of net savings in energy or water and nonfuel or nonwater operation and maintenance costs attributable to the proposed energy or water conservation measure. The denominator of the ratio is the present value of the net increase in investment and replacement costs less salvage value attributable to the proposed energy or water conservation measure.

(23) "Standard" means the state energy performance standard for covered ((commercial)) buildings established under RCW 19.27A.210.

(24) "Thermal energy company" has the same meaning as defined in RCW 80.04.550.

(25) "Weather normalized" means a method for modifying the measured building energy use in a specific weather year to energy use under normal weather conditions.

(26) "Tier 1 covered building" means a building where the sum of nonresidential, hotel, motel, and dormitory floor areas exceed 50,000 gross square feet, excluding the parking garage area.

(27) "Tier 2 covered building" means a building where the sum of multifamily residential, nonresidential, hotel, motel, and dormitory floor areas exceeds 20,000 gross square feet, but does not exceed 50,000 gross square feet, excluding the parking garage area. Tier 2 covered buildings also include multifamily residential buildings where floor areas are equal to or exceed 50,000 gross square feet, excluding the parking garage area.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 3. A new section is added to chapter 19.27A RCW to read as follows:

(1)(a) By December 1, 2023, the department must adopt by rule a state energy management and benchmarking requirement for tier 2 covered buildings. The department shall include a small business economic impact statement pursuant to chapter 19.85 RCW as part of the rule making.

(b) In establishing the requirements under (a) of this subsection, the department must adopt requirements for building owner implementation consistent with the standard established pursuant to RCW 19.27A.210(1) and limited to energy management planning, operations and maintenance planning, and energy use analysis through benchmarking and associated reporting and administrative procedures. Administrative procedures must include exemptions for financial hardship and an appeals process for administrative determinations, including penalties imposed by the department.

(c) The department must provide a customer support program to building owners including, but not limited to, outreach and informational materials that connect tier 2 covered building owners to utility resources, periodic training, phone and email support, and other technical assistance. The customer support program must include enhanced technical support, such as benchmarking assistance and assistance in developing energy management and operations and maintenance plans, for tier 2 covered buildings whose owners typically do not employ dedicated building managers including, but not limited to, multifamily housing, child care facilities, and houses of worship. The department shall prioritize underresourced buildings with a high energy use per square foot, buildings in rural communities, buildings whose tenants are primarily small businesses, and buildings located in high-risk communities according to the department of health's environmental health disparities map.

(d)(i) The department may adopt rules related to the imposition of an administrative penalty not to exceed 30 cents per square foot upon a tier 2 covered building owner for failing to submit documentation demonstrating compliance with the requirements of this subsection.

(ii) Administrative penalties collected under this section must be deposited into the low-income

weatherization and structural rehabilitation assistance account created in RCW 70A.35.030 and reinvested into the program, where feasible, to support compliance with the standard.

(2) By July 1, 2025, the department must provide the owners of tier 2 covered buildings with notification of the requirements the department has adopted pursuant to this section that apply to tier 2 covered buildings.

(3) The owner of a tier 2 covered building must report the building owner's compliance with the requirements adopted by the department to the department in accordance with the schedule established under subsection (4) of this section and every five years thereafter. For each reporting date, the building owner must submit documentation to demonstrate that the building owner has developed and implemented the procedures adopted by the department by rule, limited to energy management planning, operations and maintenance planning, and energy use analysis through benchmarking.

(4) By July 1, 2027, tier 2 covered building owners must submit reports to the department as required by the rules adopted in subsection (1) of this section.

(5)(a) By July 1, 2029, the department must evaluate benchmarking data to determine energy use and greenhouse gas emissions averages by tier 2 covered building type.

(b) The department must submit a report to the legislature and the governor by October 1, 2029, with recommendations for cost-effective building performance standards for tier 2 covered buildings. The report must contain information on estimated costs to building owners to implement the performance standards and anticipated implementation challenges.

(c)(i) By December 31, 2030, the department must adopt rules for performance standards for tier 2 covered buildings.

(ii) In adopting these performance standards, the department must consider the age of the building in setting energy use intensity targets.

(iii) The department may adopt performance standards for multifamily residential buildings on a longer

timeline schedule than for other tier 2 covered buildings.

(iv) The rules may not take effect before the end of the 2031 regular legislative session.

(v) The department must include a small business economic impact statement pursuant to chapter 19.85 RCW as part of the rule making.

Sec. 4. RCW 19.27A.220 and 2021 c 315 s 18 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The department must establish a state energy performance standard early adoption incentive program consistent with the requirements of this section. This early adoption incentive program may include incentive payments for early adoption of tier 2 covered building owner requirements as described in subsection (6) of this section.

(2) The department must adopt application and reporting requirements for the incentive program. Building energy reporting for the incentive program must be consistent with the energy reporting requirements established under RCW 19.27A.210.

(3) Upon receiving documentation demonstrating that a building owner qualifies for an incentive under this section, the department must authorize each applicable entity administering incentive payments, as provided in RCW 19.27A.240, to make an incentive payment to the building owner. When a building is served by more than one entity offering incentives or more than one type of fuel, incentive payments must be proportional to the energy use intensity reduction of each specific fuel provided by each entity for tier 1 buildings. The department may authorize any participating utility, regardless of fuel specific savings, serving a tier 2 building to administer the incentive payment.

(4) ~~((An eligible))~~ A covered building owner may receive an incentive payment in the amounts specified in subsection ~~((6))~~ (8) (a) of this section only if the following requirements are met:

(a) The building is either: (i) A covered commercial building subject to the requirements of the standard established under RCW 19.27A.210; or (ii) a multifamily residential building where the floor area exceeds ~~((fifty thousand))~~

50,000 gross square feet, excluding the parking garage area;

(b) The building's baseline energy use intensity exceeds its applicable energy use intensity target by at least ~~((fifteen))~~ 15 energy use intensity units;

(c) At least one electric utility, gas company, or thermal energy company providing or delivering energy to the covered commercial building or multifamily residential building is participating in the incentive program by administering incentive payments as provided in RCW 19.27A.240; and

(d) The building owner complies with any other requirements established by the department.

(5) ~~((a) An eligible))~~ A covered building owner who meets the requirements of subsection (4) of this section may submit an application to the department for an incentive payment in a form and manner prescribed by the department. The application must be submitted in accordance with the following schedule:

~~((i))~~ (a) For a building with more than ~~((two hundred twenty thousand))~~ 220,000 gross square feet, beginning July 1, 2021, through June 1, 2025;

~~((ii))~~ (b) For a building with more than ~~((ninety thousand))~~ 90,000 gross square feet but less than ~~((two hundred twenty thousand and one))~~ 220,001 gross square feet, beginning July 1, 2021, through June 1, 2026; and

~~((iii))~~ (c) For a building with more than ~~((fifty thousand))~~ 50,000 gross square feet but less than ~~((ninety thousand and one))~~ 90,001 gross square feet, beginning July 1, 2021, through June 1, 2027.

~~((b))~~ (6) (a) A tier 2 covered building owner may receive an incentive payment in the amounts specified in subsection (8) (b) of this section only if all required benchmarking, energy management, and operations and maintenance planning documentation as required under section 3 of this act has been submitted to the department and an incentive application has been completed.

(b) An eligible tier 2 covered building owner may submit an application beginning July 1, 2025, through June 1, 2030.

(7) The department must review each application and determine whether the applicant is eligible for the incentive program and if funds are available for the incentive payment within the limitation established in RCW 19.27A.230. If the department certifies an application, it must provide verification to the building owner and each entity participating as provided in RCW 19.27A.240 and providing service to the building owner.

~~((6))~~ ~~An eligible building owner~~)
 (8) (a) An eligible owner of a tier 1 covered building or an eligible owner of a multifamily residential building greater than 50,000 gross square feet, excluding the parking area, that demonstrates early compliance with the applicable energy use intensity target under the standard established under RCW 19.27A.210 may receive a base incentive payment of ~~((eighty-five))~~ 85 cents per gross square foot of floor area, excluding parking, unconditioned, or semiconditioned spaces.

~~((7))~~ (b) A tier 2 eligible building owner that demonstrates compliance with the applicable benchmarking, energy management, and operations and maintenance planning requirements may receive a base incentive payment of 30 cents per gross square foot of floor area, excluding parking, unconditioned, or semiconditioned spaces. The department may implement a tiered incentive structure for upgrading multifamily buildings to provide an enhanced incentive payment to multifamily building owners willing to commit to antidisplacement provisions.

(9) The incentives provided in subsection ~~((6))~~ (8) of this section are subject to the limitations and requirements of this section, including any rules or procedures implementing this section.

~~((8))~~ (10) The department must establish requirements for the verification of energy consumption by the building owner and each participating electric utility, gas company, and thermal energy company.

~~((9))~~ (11) The department must provide an administrative process for an eligible building owner to appeal a determination of an incentive eligibility or amount.

~~((10))~~ (12) By September 30, 2025, and every two years thereafter, the

department must report to the appropriate committees of the legislature on the results of the incentive program under this section and may provide recommendations to improve the effectiveness of the program. The 2025 report to the legislature must include recommendations for aligning the incentive program established under this section consistent with a goal of reducing greenhouse gas emissions from substitutes, as defined in RCW 70A.60.010.

~~((11))~~ (13) The department may adopt rules to implement this section.

Sec. 5. RCW 19.27A.230 and 2019 c 285 s 5 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The department may not issue a certification for ~~((a))~~ a tier 1 incentive application under RCW 19.27A.220(8)(a) if doing so is likely to result in total incentive payments under RCW 19.27A.220(8)(a) in excess of ~~((seventy-five million dollars))~~ \$75,000,000.

(2) The department may not issue certification for a tier 2 incentive application under RCW 19.27A.220(8)(b) if doing so is likely to result in total incentive payments under RCW 19.27A.220(8)(b) in excess of \$150,000,000.

Sec. 6. RCW 19.27A.240 and 2019 c 285 s 6 are each amended to read as follows:

(1)(a) Each qualifying utility must administer incentive payments for the state energy performance standard early adoption incentive program established in RCW 19.27A.220 on behalf of its customers who are eligible building owners of covered commercial buildings ~~((or))~~, multifamily residential buildings, or other tier 2 covered buildings consistent with the requirements of this section. Any thermal energy company, electric utility, or gas company not otherwise required to administer incentive payments may voluntarily participate by providing notice to the department in a form and manner prescribed by the department.

(b) Nothing in this subsection (1) requires a qualifying utility to administer incentive payments for the state energy performance standard early adoption incentive program established in RCW 19.27A.220 for which the qualifying utility is not allowed a

credit against taxes due under this chapter, as described in RCW 82.16.185.

(2) An entity that administers the payments for the incentive program under this section must administer the program in a manner that is consistent with the standard established and any rules adopted by the department under RCW 19.27A.210 ~~((and))~~, 19.27A.220, and section 3 of this act.

(3) Upon receiving notification from the department that a building owner has qualified for an incentive payment, each entity that administers incentive payments under this section must make incentive payments to its customers who are eligible building owners of covered commercial buildings or multifamily residential buildings who qualify as provided under this section and at rates specified in RCW 19.27A.220~~((+6))~~ (8). When a building is served by more than one entity administering incentive payments, incentive payments must be proportional to the energy use intensity reduction of the participating entities' fuel.

(4) The participation by an entity in the administration of incentive payments under this section does not relieve the entity of any obligation that may otherwise exist or be established to provide customer energy efficiency programs or incentives.

(5) An entity that administers the payments for the incentive program under this section is not liable for excess payments made in reliance on amounts reported by the department as due and payable as provided under RCW 19.27A.220, if such amounts are later found to be abnormal or inaccurate due to no fault of the business.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 7. If specific funding for the purposes of this act, referencing this act by bill or chapter number, is not provided by June 30, 2022, in the omnibus appropriations act, this act is null and void."

Correct the title.

Representative Dye moved the adoption of amendment (1314) to striking amendment (1302):

On page 1, line 17 of the striking amendment, after "commercial" strike "and multifamily residential"

On page 4, line 32 of the striking amendment, after "(27)" insert "(a)"

On page 4, at the beginning of line 33 of the striking amendment, strike "multifamily residential,"

On page 4, beginning on line 35 of the striking amendment, after "area." strike all material through "area." on line 38

On page 4, after line 38 of the striking amendment, insert the following:

"(b) "Tier 2 covered building" does not include any building that is a:

(i) childcare facility;

(ii) house of worship;

(iii) hospital;

(iv) commercial building, owned or occupied by a tenant, that provides healthcare services;

(v) commercial building owned or occupied by a person to manufacture, or to retail or wholesale sell, pharmaceutical medicine; or

(vi) commercial building that is owned or occupied by a retail or wholesale seller of building materials, including, but not limited to, sellers of lumber, flooring, roofing materials, plumbing fixtures, doors, windows, kitchen appliances, and interior lighting."

On page 5, beginning on line 25 of the striking amendment, after "managers" strike all material through "worship" on line 27

On page 6, beginning on line 33 of the striking amendment, after "(iii)" strike all material through "(iv)" on line 38

Renumber the remaining subsection consecutively and correct any internal references accordingly.

On page 9, beginning on line 7 of the striking amendment, after "spaces." strike all material through "provisions." on line 11

On page 10, line 11 of the striking amendment, after "or" strike "other"

Representatives Dye, Dufault, Klicker, Klippert, Barkis, Chambers, Walsh, Goehner, Ybarra, Kraft and Harris spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment to the striking amendment.

Representatives Fitzgibbon and Ramel spoke against the adoption of the amendment to the striking amendment.

Amendment (1314) to striking amendment (1302) was not adopted.

Representative Dye moved the adoption of amendment (1313) to striking amendment (1302):

On page 4, line 38 of the striking amendment, after "area." insert "Tier 2 covered buildings do not include any buildings served by an electric utility with a fuel mix that has a greenhouse gas content calculation as defined in RCW 19.405.070 of 10 percent or less, and that are not using natural gas for space or water heating."

Representatives Dye, Dufault, Boehnke and Walsh spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment to the striking amendment.

Representative Ramel spoke against the adoption of the amendment to the striking amendment.

Amendment (1313) to striking amendment (1302) was not adopted.

Representative Hackney spoke in favor of the adoption of the striking amendment.

Representative Dye spoke against the adoption of the striking amendment.

Striking amendment (1302) was adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Hackney, Ramel, Fitzgibbon and Duerr spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representatives McCaslin, Dye, Abbarno, McEntire, Dufault, Barkis, Hoff, Klicker, Jacobsen, Chase, Klippert, Goehner, Harris, Gilday, Kraft, McEntire (again), Ybarra, Walsh and Boehnke spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5722, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5722, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 53; Nays, 45; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Bronoske, Callan, Chopp, Cody, Davis, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Entenman, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame,

Goodman, Gregerson, Hackney, Hansen, Harris-Talley, J. Johnson, Kirby, Kloba, Leavitt, Lekanoff, Macri, Morgan, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Ryu, Santos, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Stonier, Sullivan, Taylor, Thai, Valdez, Walen, Wicks, Wylie and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Boehnke, Caldier, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Corry, Dent, Dufault, Dye, Eslick, Gilday, Goehner, Graham, Griffey, Harris, Hoff, Jacobsen, Klicker, Klippert, Kraft, Kretz, MacEwen, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Schmick, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Sutherland, Tharinger, Vick, Volz, Walsh, Wilcox, Ybarra and Young.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5722, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

ENGROSSED SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5600, by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Keiser, Holy, Conway, Das, Dhingra, Hasegawa, Kuderer, Liias, Lovelett, Lovick, Randall, Rivers, Robinson, Saldaña, Salomon, Stanford, Trudeau, Wagoner, Warnick, Wellman and Wilson, C.)

Concerning the sustainability and expansion of state registered apprenticeship programs.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Appropriations was adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 50, February 28, 2022).

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Paul and Chambers spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representative Dufault spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5600, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5600, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 94; Nays, 4; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner,

Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Dufault, Hoff, Kraft and McCaslin.

ENGROSSED SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5600, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5715, by Senators Wellman, Sheldon, Randall and Wilson, C.

Modifying the definition of broadband or broadband service.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Paul and Boehnke spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5715.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5715, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 96; Nays, 2; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Dufault and Kraft.

SENATE BILL NO. 5715, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5664, by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Dhingra, Keiser and Nobles)

Concerning forensic competency restoration programs.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Civil Rights & Judiciary was not adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 46, February 24, 2022).

With the consent of the House, amendment (1300) was withdrawn.

Representative Davis moved the adoption of striking amendment (1326):

Strike everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

"**Sec. 1.** RCW 10.77.010 and 2021 c 263 s 9 are each reenacted, and amended to read as follows:

As used in this chapter:

(1) "Admission" means acceptance based on medical necessity, of a person as a patient.

(2) "Commitment" means the determination by a court that a person should be detained for a period of either evaluation or treatment, or both, in an inpatient or a less-restrictive setting.

(3) "Community behavioral health agency" has the same meaning as "licensed or certified behavioral health agency" defined in RCW 71.24.025.

(4) "Conditional release" means modification of a court-ordered commitment, which may be revoked upon violation of any of its terms.

(5) A "criminally insane" person means any person who has been acquitted of a crime charged by reason of insanity, and thereupon found to be a substantial danger to other persons or to present a substantial likelihood of committing criminal acts jeopardizing public safety or security unless kept under further control by the court or other persons or institutions.

(6) "Department" means the state department of social and health services.

(7) "Designated crisis responder" has the same meaning as provided in RCW 71.05.020.

(8) "Detention" or "detain" means the lawful confinement of a person, under the provisions of this chapter, pending evaluation.

(9) "Developmental disabilities professional" means a person who has specialized training and three years of experience in directly treating or working with persons with developmental disabilities and is a psychiatrist or psychologist, or a social worker, and such other developmental disabilities professionals as may be defined by rules adopted by the secretary.

(10) "Developmental disability" means the condition as defined in RCW 71A.10.020 (5).

(11) "Discharge" means the termination of hospital medical authority. The commitment may remain in place, be terminated, or be amended by court order.

(12) "Furlough" means an authorized leave of absence for a resident of a state institution operated by the department designated for the custody, care, and treatment of the criminally insane, consistent with an order of conditional release from the court under this chapter, without any requirement that the resident be accompanied by, or be in the custody of, any law enforcement or institutional staff, while on such unescorted leave.

(13) "Habilitative services" means those services provided by program personnel to assist persons in acquiring and maintaining life skills and in raising their levels of physical, mental, social, and vocational functioning. Habilitative services include education, training for employment, and therapy. The habilitative process shall be undertaken with recognition of the risk to the public safety presented by the person being assisted as manifested by prior charged criminal conduct.

(14) "History of one or more violent acts" means violent acts committed during: (a) The ten-year period of time prior to the filing of criminal charges; plus (b) the amount of time equal to time spent during the ten-year period in a mental health facility or in confinement as a result of a criminal conviction.

(15) "Immediate family member" means a spouse, child, stepchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, sibling, or domestic partner.

(16) "Incompetency" means a person lacks the capacity to understand the nature of the proceedings against him or her or to assist in his or her own defense as a result of mental disease or defect.

(17) "Indigent" means any person who is financially unable to obtain counsel or other necessary expert or professional services without causing substantial hardship to the person or his or her family.

(18) "Individualized service plan" means a plan prepared by a developmental disabilities professional with other professionals as a team, for an individual with developmental disabilities, which shall state:

(a) The nature of the person's specific problems, prior charged criminal behavior, and habilitation needs;

(b) The conditions and strategies necessary to achieve the purposes of habilitation;

(c) The intermediate and long-range goals of the habilitation program, with a projected timetable for the attainment;

(d) The rationale for using this plan of habilitation to achieve those intermediate and long-range goals;

(e) The staff responsible for carrying out the plan;

(f) Where relevant in light of past criminal behavior and due consideration for public safety, the criteria for proposed movement to less-restrictive settings, criteria for proposed eventual release, and a projected possible date for release; and

(g) The type of residence immediately anticipated for the person and possible future types of residences.

(19) "Professional person" means:

(a) A psychiatrist licensed as a physician and surgeon in this state who has, in addition, completed three years of graduate training in psychiatry in a program approved by the American medical association or the American osteopathic association and is certified or eligible to be certified by the American board of psychiatry and neurology or the American osteopathic board of neurology and psychiatry;

(b) A psychologist licensed as a psychologist pursuant to chapter 18.83 RCW; (~~(e)~~)

(c) A psychiatric advanced registered nurse practitioner, as defined in RCW 71.05.020; or

(d) A social worker with a master's or further advanced degree from a social work educational program accredited and approved as provided in RCW 18.320.010.

(20) "Release" means legal termination of the court-ordered commitment under the provisions of this chapter.

(21) "Secretary" means the secretary of the department of social and health services or his or her designee.

(22) "Treatment" means any currently standardized medical or mental health procedure including medication.

(23) "Treatment records" include registration and all other records concerning persons who are receiving or who at any time have received services for mental illness, which are maintained by the department, by behavioral health administrative services organizations and their staffs, by managed care organizations and their staffs, and by treatment facilities. Treatment records do not include notes or records maintained for personal use by a person providing treatment services for the department, behavioral health administrative services organizations, managed care organizations, or a treatment facility if the notes or records are not available to others.

(24) "Violent act" means behavior that: (a) (i) Resulted in; (ii) if completed as intended would have resulted in; or (iii) was threatened to be carried out by a person who had the intent and opportunity to carry out the threat and would have resulted in, homicide, nonfatal injuries, or substantial damage to property; or (b) recklessly creates an immediate risk of serious physical injury to another person. As used in this subsection, "nonfatal injuries" means physical pain or injury, illness, or an impairment of physical condition. "Nonfatal injuries" shall be construed to be consistent with the definition of "bodily injury," as defined in RCW 9A.04.110.

(25) "Authority" means the Washington state health care authority.

Sec. 2. RCW 10.77.060 and 2021 c 263 s 5 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) (a) Whenever a defendant has pleaded not guilty by reason of insanity, or there is reason to doubt his or her competency, the court on its own motion or on the motion of any party shall either appoint or request the secretary to designate a qualified expert or professional person, who shall be approved by the prosecuting attorney, to evaluate and report upon the mental condition of the defendant.

(b) The signed order of the court shall serve as authority for the evaluator to be given access to all records held by any mental health, medical, educational, or correctional facility that relate to the present or past mental, emotional, or physical condition of the defendant. If the court is advised by any party that the defendant may have a developmental disability, the evaluation must be performed by a developmental disabilities professional and the evaluator shall have access to records of the developmental disabilities administration of the department.

(c) The evaluator shall assess the defendant in a jail, detention facility, in the community, or in court to determine whether a period of inpatient commitment will be necessary to complete an accurate evaluation. If inpatient commitment is needed, the signed order of the court shall serve as authority for the evaluator to request the jail or detention facility to transport the defendant to a hospital or secure mental health facility for a period of commitment not to exceed fifteen days from the time of admission to the facility. Otherwise, the evaluator shall complete the evaluation.

(d) The court may commit the defendant for evaluation to a hospital or secure mental health facility without an assessment if: (i) The defendant is charged with murder in the first or second degree; (ii) the court finds that it is more likely than not that an evaluation in the jail will be inadequate to complete an accurate evaluation; or (iii) the court finds that an evaluation outside the jail setting is necessary for the health, safety, or welfare of the defendant. The court shall not order an initial inpatient evaluation for any purpose other than a competency evaluation.

(e) The order shall indicate whether, in the event the defendant is committed to a hospital or secure mental health facility for evaluation, all parties agree to waive the presence of the defendant or to the defendant's remote participation at a subsequent competency hearing or presentation of an agreed order if the recommendation of the evaluator is for continuation of the stay of criminal proceedings, or if the opinion of the evaluator is that the defendant remains incompetent and there is no remaining restoration period, and the hearing is held prior to the expiration of the authorized commitment period.

(f) When a defendant is ordered to be evaluated under this subsection (1), or when a party or the court determines at first appearance that an order for evaluation under this subsection will be requested or ordered if charges are pursued, the court may delay granting bail until the defendant has been evaluated for competency or sanity and appears before the court. Following the evaluation, in determining bail the court shall consider: (i) Recommendations of the evaluator regarding the defendant's competency, sanity, or diminished capacity; (ii) whether the defendant has a recent history of one or more violent acts; (iii) whether the defendant has previously been acquitted by reason of insanity or found incompetent; (iv) whether it is reasonably likely the defendant will fail to appear for a future court hearing; and (v) whether the defendant is a threat to public safety.

(2) The court may direct that a qualified expert or professional person retained by or appointed for the defendant be permitted to witness the evaluation authorized by subsection (1) of this section, and that the defendant shall have access to all information obtained by the court appointed experts or professional persons. The defendant's expert or professional person shall have the right to file his or her own report following the guidelines of subsection (3) of this section. If the defendant is indigent, the court shall upon the request of the defendant assist him or her in obtaining an expert or professional person.

(3) The report of the evaluation shall include the following:

(a) A description of the nature of the evaluation;

(b) A diagnosis or description of the current mental status of the defendant;

(c) If the defendant suffers from a mental disease or defect, or has a developmental disability, an opinion as to competency;

(d) If the defendant has indicated his or her intention to rely on the defense of insanity pursuant to RCW 10.77.030, and an evaluation and report by an expert or professional person has been provided concluding that the defendant was criminally insane at the time of the alleged offense, an opinion as to the defendant's sanity at the time of the act, and an opinion as to whether the defendant presents a substantial danger to other persons, or presents a substantial likelihood of committing criminal acts jeopardizing public safety or security, unless kept under further control by the court or other persons or institutions, provided that no opinion shall be rendered under this subsection (3)(d) unless the evaluator or court determines that the defendant is competent to stand trial;

(e) When directed by the court, if an evaluation and report by an expert or professional person has been provided concluding that the defendant lacked the capacity at the time of the offense to form the mental state necessary to commit the charged offense, an opinion as to the capacity of the defendant to have a particular state of mind which is an element of the offense charged;

(f) An opinion as to whether the defendant should be evaluated by a designated crisis responder under chapter 71.05 RCW.

(4) The secretary may execute such agreements as appropriate and necessary to implement this section and may choose to designate more than one evaluator.

(5) In the event that a person remains in jail more than 21 days after service on the department of a court order to transport the person to a facility designated by the department for inpatient competency restoration treatment, upon the request of any party and with notice to all parties, the department shall perform a competency to stand trial status check to determine if the circumstances of the person have changed such that the court should authorize an updated competency evaluation. The status update shall be provided to the parties and the court.

Status updates may be provided at reasonable intervals.

Sec. 3. RCW 10.77.068 and 2015 c 5 s 1 are each amended to read as follows:

(1)(a) The legislature establishes ((the following)) a performance ((targets and maximum time limits for the timeliness of the completion of accurate and reliable evaluations of competency to stand trial and admissions for inpatient restoration services related to competency to proceed or stand trial for adult criminal defendants.)) target of seven days or fewer to extend an offer of admission to a defendant in pretrial custody for inpatient competency evaluation or inpatient competency restoration services, when access to the services is legally authorized;

(b) The legislature establishes a performance target of 14 days or fewer for the following services related to competency to stand trial, when access to the services is legally authorized:

(i) To complete a competency evaluation in jail and distribute the evaluation report; and

(ii) To extend an offer of admission to a defendant ordered to be committed to a state hospital following dismissal of charges based on incompetency to stand trial under RCW 10.77.086.

(c) The legislature establishes a performance target of 21 days or fewer to complete a competency evaluation in the community and distribute the evaluation report.

(2)(a) A maximum time limit of seven days as measured from the department's receipt of the court order, or a maximum time limit of 14 days as measured from signature of the court order, whichever is shorter, is established to complete the services specified in subsection (1)(a) of this section, subject to the limitations under subsection (9) of this section.

(b) A maximum time limit of 14 days as measured from the department's receipt of the court order, or a maximum time limit of 21 days as measured from signature of the court order, whichever is shorter, is established to complete the services specified in subsection (1)(b) of this section, subject to the limitations under subsection (9) of this section.

(3) The legislature recognizes that these targets may not be achievable in

~~all cases ((without compromise to the quality of competency evaluation and restoration services)), but intends for the department to manage, allocate, and request appropriations for resources in order to meet these targets whenever possible without sacrificing the accuracy and quality of competency ((evaluations and restorations, and to otherwise make sustainable improvements and track performance related to the timeliness of competency services.~~

~~(i) For a state hospital to extend an offer of admission to a defendant in pretrial custody for legally authorized evaluation services related to competency, or to extend an offer of admission for legally authorized services following dismissal of charges based on incompetence to proceed or stand trial;~~

~~(A) A performance target of seven days or less; and~~

~~(B) A maximum time limit of fourteen days;~~

~~(ii) For a state hospital to extend an offer of admission to a defendant in pretrial custody for legally authorized inpatient restoration treatment related to competency;~~

~~(A) A performance target of seven days or less; and~~

~~(B) A maximum time limit of fourteen days;~~

~~(iii) For completion of a competency evaluation in jail and distribution of the evaluation report for a defendant in pretrial custody;~~

~~(A) A performance target of seven days or less; and~~

~~(B) A maximum time limit of fourteen days, plus an additional seven day extension if needed for clinical reasons to complete the evaluation at the determination of the department;~~

~~(iv) For completion of a competency evaluation in the community and distribution of the evaluation report for a defendant who is released from custody and makes a reasonable effort to cooperate with the evaluation, a performance target of twenty one days or less)) services.~~

~~((b) The time periods measured in these performance targets and maximum time limits shall run from the date on which the state hospital receives the~~

~~court referral and charging documents, discovery, police reports, the names and addresses of the attorneys for the defendant and state or county, the name of the judge ordering the evaluation, information about the alleged crime, and criminal history information related to the defendant. The maximum time limits in (a) of this subsection shall be phased in over a one year period beginning July 1, 2015, in a manner that results in measurable incremental progress toward meeting the time limits over the course of the year.~~

~~(e))~~ (4) It shall be a defense to an allegation that the department has exceeded the maximum time limits for completion of competency services described in ~~((a) of this)~~ subsection (2) of this section if the department can demonstrate by a preponderance of the evidence that the reason for exceeding the maximum time limits was outside of the department's control including, but not limited to, the following circumstances:

~~((i))~~ (a) Despite a timely request, the department has not received necessary medical ~~((clearance))~~ information regarding the current medical status of a defendant ~~((in pretrial custody for the purposes of admission to a state hospital));~~

~~((ii))~~ (b) The individual circumstances of the defendant make accurate completion of an evaluation of competency to ~~((proceed or))~~ stand trial dependent upon review of mental health, substance use disorder, or medical history information which is in the custody of a third party and cannot be immediately obtained by the department ~~((Completion of a competency evaluation)), provided that completion shall not be postponed for procurement of ((mental health, substance use disorder, or medical history)) information which is merely supplementary ((to the competency determination));~~

~~((iii))~~ (c) Additional time is needed for the defendant to no longer show active signs and symptoms of impairment related to substance use so that an accurate evaluation may be completed;

(d) The defendant is medically unavailable for competency evaluation or admission to a facility for competency restoration;

~~(e)~~ Completion of the referral ~~((is frustrated by lack of))~~ requires additional time to accommodate the availability or participation ((by)) of counsel, ((jail or)) court personnel, interpreters, or the defendant;

~~((iv))~~ ~~The department does not have access to appropriate private space to conduct a competency evaluation for a defendant in pretrial custody;~~

~~(v))~~ (f) The defendant asserts legal rights that result in a delay in the provision of competency services; or

~~((vi))~~ (g) An unusual spike in the receipt of evaluation referrals or in the number of defendants requiring restoration services has occurred, causing temporary delays until the unexpected excess demand for competency services can be resolved.

~~((2))~~ (5) The department shall provide written notice to the court when it will not be able to meet the maximum time limits under subsection (2) of this section and identify the reasons for the delay and provide a reasonable estimate of the time necessary to complete the competency service. Good cause for an extension for the additional time estimated by the department shall be presumed absent a written response from the court or a party received by the department within seven days.

(6) The department shall:

(a) Develop, document, and implement procedures to monitor the clinical status of defendants admitted to a state hospital for competency services that allow the state hospital to accomplish early discharge for defendants for whom clinical objectives have been achieved or may be achieved before expiration of the commitment period;

(b) Investigate the extent to which patients admitted to a state hospital under this chapter overstay time periods authorized by law and take reasonable steps to limit the time of commitment to authorized periods; and

(c) Establish written standards for the productivity of forensic evaluators and utilize these standards to internally review the performance of forensic evaluators.

~~((3))~~ (7) Following any quarter in which a state hospital has failed to meet one or more of the performance targets or maximum time limits ((in)) under

subsection (1) or (2) of this section ~~((after full implementation of the performance target or maximum time limit)),~~ the department shall report to the executive and the legislature the extent of this deviation and describe any corrective action being taken to improve performance. This report ~~((must))~~ shall be made publicly available. An average may be used to determine timeliness under this subsection.

~~((4))~~ ~~Beginning December 1, 2013,~~ ~~the))~~ (8) The department shall report annually to the legislature and the executive on the timeliness of services related to competency to ~~((proceed or))~~ stand trial and the timeliness with which court referrals accompanied by charging documents, discovery, and criminal history information are provided to the department relative to the signature date of the court order. The report must be in a form that is accessible to the public and that breaks down performance by county.

~~((5))~~ (9) This section does not create any new entitlement or cause of action related to the timeliness of competency ~~((evaluations or admission for inpatient restoration))~~ to stand trial services ~~((related to competency to proceed or stand trial)),~~ nor can it form the basis for contempt sanctions under chapter 7.21 RCW or a motion to dismiss criminal charges.

Sec. 4. RCW 10.77.086 and 2019 c 326 s 4 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) ~~((a))~~ (i) If the defendant is charged with a felony and determined to be incompetent, until he or she has regained the competency necessary to understand the proceedings against him or her and assist in his or her own defense, but in any event for a period of no longer than ~~((ninety))~~ 90 days, the court shall commit the defendant to the custody of the secretary for inpatient competency restoration ~~((Based)),~~ or may alternatively order the defendant to receive outpatient competency restoration based on a recommendation from a forensic navigator and input from the parties ~~((, the court may order the defendant to receive inpatient competency restoration or outpatient competency restoration)).~~

~~((A))~~ (a) To be eligible for an order for outpatient competency restoration, a defendant must be clinically appropriate and be willing to:

~~((I))~~ (i) Adhere to medications or receive prescribed intramuscular medication; ~~((and~~

~~((II))~~ (ii) Abstain from alcohol and unprescribed drugs; and

(iii) Comply with urinalysis or breathalyzer monitoring if needed.

~~((B))~~ (b) If the court orders inpatient competency restoration, the department shall place the defendant in an appropriate facility of the department for competency restoration.

~~((C))~~ (c) If the court orders outpatient competency restoration, the court shall modify conditions of release as needed to authorize the department to place the person in approved housing, which may include access to supported housing, affiliated with a contracted outpatient competency restoration program. The department, in conjunction with the health care authority, must establish rules for conditions of participation in the outpatient competency restoration program, which must include the defendant being subject to medication management ~~((and)).~~ The court may order regular urinalysis testing ~~((for defendants who have a current substance use disorder diagnosis)).~~ The outpatient competency restoration program shall monitor the defendant during the defendant's placement in the program and report any noncompliance or significant changes with respect to the defendant to the department and, if applicable, the forensic navigator.

~~((D))~~ (d) If a defendant fails to comply with the restrictions of the outpatient restoration program such that restoration is no longer appropriate in that setting or the defendant is no longer clinically appropriate for outpatient competency restoration, the ~~((department shall remove the defendant from the outpatient restoration program and place the defendant instead))~~ director of the outpatient competency restoration program shall notify the authority and the department of the need to terminate the outpatient competency restoration placement and intent to request placement for the defendant in an appropriate facility of the department for inpatient competency restoration ~~((for no longer than the time allowed as if the defendant had been initially placed into inpatient competency restoration, in addition to reasonable~~

~~time for transport to or from the facility)). The outpatient competency restoration program shall coordinate with the authority, the department, and any law enforcement personnel under (d)(i) of this subsection to ensure that the time period between termination and admission into the inpatient facility is as minimal as possible. The time period for inpatient competency restoration shall be reduced by the time period spent in active treatment within the outpatient competency restoration program, excluding time periods in which the defendant was absent from the program and all time from notice of termination of the outpatient competency restoration period through the defendant's admission to the facility. The department shall obtain a placement for the defendant within seven days of the notice of intent to terminate the outpatient competency restoration placement.~~

(i) The department may authorize a peace officer to detain the defendant into emergency custody for transport to the designated inpatient competency restoration facility. If medical clearance is required by the designated competency restoration facility before admission, the peace officer must transport the defendant to a crisis stabilization unit, evaluation and treatment facility, emergency department of a local hospital, or triage facility for medical clearance once a bed is available at the designated inpatient competency restoration facility. The signed outpatient competency restoration order of the court shall serve as authority for the detention of the defendant under this subsection. This subsection does not preclude voluntary transportation of the defendant to a facility for inpatient competency restoration or for medical clearance, or authorize admission of the defendant into jail.

(ii) The department shall notify the court and parties of the ((change in placement)) defendant's admission for inpatient competency restoration before the close of the next judicial day. The court shall schedule a hearing within five days to review the ((placement and)) conditions of release of the defendant and anticipated release from treatment and issue appropriate orders. ((The standard of proof shall be a preponderance of the evidence, and the court may in its discretion render its

~~decision based on written submissions, live testimony, or remote testimony.~~

~~(E))~~ (e) The court may not issue an order for outpatient competency restoration unless the department certifies that there is an available appropriate outpatient competency restoration program that has adequate space for the person at the time the order is issued or the court places the defendant under the guidance and control of a professional person identified in the court order.

~~((ii) The ninety day period for competency restoration under this subsection (1) includes only the time the defendant is actually at the facility and is in addition to reasonable time for transport to or from the facility.~~

~~(b))~~ (2) For a defendant whose highest charge is a class C felony, or a class B felony that is not classified as violent under RCW 9.94A.030, the maximum time allowed for the initial competency restoration period ((of commitment for competency restoration)) is ((forty-five)) 45 days if the defendant is referred for inpatient competency restoration, or 90 days if the defendant is referred for outpatient competency restoration, provided that if the outpatient competency restoration placement is terminated and the defendant is subsequently admitted to an inpatient facility, the period of inpatient treatment during the first competency restoration period under this subsection shall not exceed 45 days. ((The forty-five day period includes only the time the defendant is actually at the facility and is in addition to reasonable time for transport to or from the facility.

~~(e))~~ (3) If the court determines or the parties agree before the initial competency restoration period or at any subsequent stage of the proceedings that the defendant is unlikely to regain competency, the court may dismiss the charges without prejudice without ordering the defendant to undergo an initial or further period of competency restoration treatment, in which case the court shall order that the defendant be referred for evaluation for civil commitment in the manner provided in subsection ((4)) (5) of this section.

~~((2))~~ (4) On or before expiration of the initial competency restoration period ((of commitment under subsection (1) of this section)) the court shall

conduct a hearing (~~(, at which it shall)~~) to determine whether (~~(or not)~~) the defendant is (~~(incompetent. (3))~~) now competent to stand trial. If the court finds by a preponderance of the evidence that (~~(a)~~) the defendant (~~(charged with a felony)~~) is incompetent to stand trial, the court (~~(shall have the option of extending the)~~) may order (~~(of commitment or alternative treatment)~~) an extension of the competency restoration period for an additional period of ((ninety)) 90 days, but the court must at the same time ((of extension)) set a date for a ((prompt)) new hearing to determine the defendant's competency to stand trial before the expiration of ((the)) this second restoration period. The defendant, the defendant's attorney, (~~(or)~~) and the prosecutor (~~(has)~~) have the right to demand that the hearing be before a jury. No extension shall be ordered for a second or third competency restoration period (~~(as provided in subsection (4) of this section)~~) if the defendant's incompetence has been determined by the secretary to be solely the result of a developmental disability which is such that competence is not reasonably likely to be regained during an extension. (~~(The ninety day period includes only the time the defendant is actually at the facility and is in addition to reasonable time for transport to or from the facility.~~)

~~(4) For persons charged with a felony, at)~~

(5) At the hearing upon the expiration of the second competency restoration period, or at the end of the first competency restoration period ((in the case of a)) if the defendant ((with a developmental disability)) is ineligible for a second or third competency restoration period under subsection (4) of this section, if the jury or court finds that the defendant is incompetent ((, or if the court or jury at any stage finds that the defendant is incompetent and the court determines that the defendant is unlikely to regain competency, the charges shall be dismissed)) to stand trial, the court shall dismiss the charges without prejudice ((,)) and ((the court shall)) order the defendant to be committed to a state hospital ((as defined in RCW 72.23.010)) for up to ((seventy two)) 120 hours if the defendant has not undergone competency restoration services or has engaged in outpatient competency restoration services and up to 72 hours

if the defendant engaged in inpatient competency restoration services starting from admission to the facility, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays, for evaluation for the purpose of filing a civil commitment petition under chapter 71.05 RCW. ((The criminal charges)) However, the court shall not ((be dismissed)) dismiss the charges if the court or jury finds that: (a) The defendant (i) is a substantial danger to other persons; or (ii) presents a substantial likelihood of committing criminal acts jeopardizing public safety or security; and (b) there is a substantial probability that the defendant will regain competency within a reasonable period of time. ((In the event that)) If the court or jury makes such a finding, the court may extend the period of commitment for up to an additional six months. ((The six month))

(6) Any period of competency restoration treatment under this section includes only the time the defendant is actually at the facility or is actively participating in an outpatient competency restoration program and is in addition to reasonable time for transport to or from the facility.

Sec. 5. RCW 10.77.088 and 2020 c 18 s 4 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) If the defendant is charged with a nonfelony crime which is a serious offense as identified in RCW 10.77.092 and found by the court to be not competent, then the court:

(a) Shall dismiss the proceedings without prejudice and detain the defendant for sufficient time to allow the designated crisis responder to evaluate the defendant and consider initial detention proceedings under chapter 71.05 RCW, unless the prosecutor objects to the dismissal and provides notice of a motion for an order for competency restoration treatment, in which case the court shall schedule a hearing within seven days ((to determine whether to enter an order of competency restoration)).

(b) At the hearing, the prosecuting attorney must establish that there is a compelling state interest to order competency restoration treatment for the defendant. The court may consider prior criminal history, prior history in treatment, prior history of violence, the quality and severity of the pending charges, any history that suggests

whether ~~((or not))~~ competency restoration treatment is likely to be successful, in addition to the factors listed under RCW 10.77.092. If the prosecuting attorney proves by a preponderance of the evidence that there is a compelling state interest in ordering competency restoration treatment, then the court shall issue an order ~~((competency restoration))~~ in accordance with subsection (2) ~~((a))~~ of this section.

(2) ~~((a))~~ If a court finds pursuant to subsection (1) (b) of this section that there is a compelling state interest in pursuing competency restoration treatment, ~~((then))~~ the court shall commit the defendant to the custody of the secretary for inpatient competency restoration ~~((Based))~~, or may alternatively order the defendant to receive outpatient competency restoration based on a recommendation from a forensic navigator and input from the parties ~~((, the court may order the defendant to receive inpatient competency restoration or outpatient competency restoration))~~.

~~((i))~~ (a) To be eligible for an order for outpatient competency restoration, a defendant must be clinically appropriate and be willing to:

~~((A))~~ (i) Adhere to medications or receive prescribed intramuscular medication; ~~((and~~

~~((B))~~ (ii) Abstain from alcohol and unprescribed drugs; and

(iii) Comply with urinalysis or breathalyzer monitoring if needed.

~~((ii))~~ (b) If the court orders inpatient competency restoration, the department shall place the defendant in an appropriate facility of the department for competency restoration under ~~((b))~~ subsection (3) of this ~~((subsection))~~ section.

~~((iii))~~ (c) If the court orders outpatient competency restoration, the court shall modify conditions of release as needed to authorize the department to place the person in approved housing, which may include access to supported housing, affiliated with a contracted outpatient competency restoration program. The department, in conjunction with the health care authority, must establish rules for conditions of participation in the outpatient competency restoration program, which

must include the defendant being subject to medication management ~~((and))~~. The court may order regular urinalysis testing ~~((for defendants who have a current substance use disorder diagnosis))~~. The outpatient competency restoration program shall monitor the defendant during the defendant's placement in the program and report any noncompliance or significant changes with respect to the defendant to the department and, if applicable, the forensic navigator.

~~((iv))~~ (d) If a defendant fails to comply with the restrictions of the outpatient competency restoration program such that restoration is no longer appropriate in that setting or the defendant is no longer clinically appropriate for outpatient competency restoration, the ~~((department shall remove the defendant from the outpatient restoration program. The department shall place the defendant instead))~~ director of the outpatient competency restoration program shall notify the authority and the department of the need to terminate the outpatient competency restoration placement and intent to request placement for the defendant in an appropriate facility of the department for inpatient competency restoration ~~((for no longer than twenty-nine days regardless of any time spent in outpatient competency restoration, in addition to reasonable time for transport to or from the facility))~~. The outpatient competency restoration program shall coordinate with the authority, the department, and any law enforcement personnel under (d) (i) of this subsection to ensure that the time period between termination and admission into the inpatient facility is as minimal as possible. The time period for inpatient competency restoration shall be reduced by the time period spent in active treatment within the outpatient competency restoration program, excluding time periods in which the defendant was absent from the program and all time from notice of termination of the outpatient competency restoration period through the defendant's admission to the facility. The department shall obtain a placement for the defendant within seven days of the notice of intent to terminate the outpatient competency restoration placement.

(i) The department may authorize a peace officer to detain the defendant into emergency custody for transport to

the designated inpatient competency restoration facility. If medical clearance is required by the designated competency restoration facility before admission, the peace officer must transport the defendant to a crisis stabilization unit, evaluation and treatment facility, emergency department of a local hospital, or triage facility for medical clearance once a bed is available at the designated inpatient competency restoration facility. The signed outpatient competency restoration order of the court shall serve as authority for the detention of the defendant under this subsection. This subsection does not preclude voluntary transportation of the defendant to a facility for inpatient competency restoration or for medical clearance, or authorize admission of the defendant into jail.

(ii) The department shall notify the court and parties of the (~~change in placement~~) defendant's admission for inpatient competency restoration before the close of the next judicial day. The court shall schedule a hearing within five days to review the (~~placement and~~) conditions of release of the defendant and anticipated release from treatment and issue appropriate orders. (~~The standard of proof shall be a preponderance of the evidence, and the court may in its discretion render its decision based on written submissions, live testimony, or remote testimony.~~

~~(v)~~ (e) The court may not issue an order for outpatient competency restoration unless the department certifies that there is an available appropriate outpatient restoration program that has adequate space for the person at the time the order is issued or the court places the defendant under the guidance and control of a professional person identified in the court order.

~~((b))~~ (3) The placement under ~~((a))~~ subsection (2) of this ~~((subsection))~~ section shall not exceed ~~((twenty-nine))~~ 29 days if the defendant is ordered to receive inpatient competency restoration, ~~((or))~~ and shall not exceed ~~((ninety))~~ 90 days if the defendant is ordered to receive outpatient competency restoration. The court may order any combination of this subsection ~~((, not to exceed ninety days. This period must be considered to include only the time the defendant is actually at the facility and shall be in addition~~

~~to reasonable time for transport to or from the facility)), but the total period of inpatient competency restoration may not exceed 29 days.~~

~~((e))~~ (4) If the court has determined or the parties agree that the defendant is unlikely to regain competency, the court may dismiss the charges without prejudice without ordering the defendant to undergo competency restoration treatment, in which case the court shall order that the defendant be referred for evaluation for civil commitment in the manner provided in ~~((d))~~ subsection (5) of this ~~((subsection))~~ section.

~~((d(i)))~~ (5) (a) If the proceedings are dismissed under RCW 10.77.084 and the defendant was on conditional release at the time of dismissal, the court shall order the designated crisis responder within that county to evaluate the defendant pursuant to chapter 71.05 RCW. The evaluation may be conducted in any location chosen by the professional.

~~((iii))~~ (b) If the defendant was in custody and not on conditional release at the time of dismissal, the defendant shall be detained and sent to an evaluation and treatment facility for up to ~~((seventy-two))~~ 120 hours if the defendant has not undergone competency restoration services or has engaged in outpatient competency restoration services and up to 72 hours if the defendant engaged in inpatient competency restoration services, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays, for evaluation for purposes of filing a petition under chapter 71.05 RCW. The ~~((seventy-two))~~ 120-hour or 72-hour period shall commence upon the next nonholiday weekday following the court order and shall run to the end of the last nonholiday weekday within the ~~((seventy-two))~~ 120-hour or 72-hour period.

~~((3))~~ (6) If the defendant is charged with a nonfelony crime that is not a serious offense as defined in RCW 10.77.092 and found by the court to be not competent, the court may stay or dismiss proceedings and detain the defendant for sufficient time to allow the designated crisis responder to evaluate the defendant and consider initial detention proceedings under chapter 71.05 RCW. The court must give notice to all parties at least ~~((twenty-four))~~ 24 hours before the dismissal of any proceeding under this subsection, and

provide an opportunity for a hearing on whether to dismiss the proceedings.

~~((4))~~ (7) If at any time the court dismisses charges under subsections (1) through ~~((3))~~ (6) of this section, the court shall make a finding as to whether the defendant has a history of one or more violent acts. If the court so finds, the defendant is barred from the possession of firearms until a court restores his or her right to possess a firearm under RCW 9.41.047. The court shall state to the defendant and provide written notice that the defendant is barred from the possession of firearms and that the prohibition remains in effect until a court restores his or her right to possess a firearm under RCW 9.41.047.

(8) Any period of competency restoration treatment under this section includes only the time the defendant is actually at the facility or is actively participating in an outpatient competency restoration program and is in addition to reasonable time for transport to or from the facility.

Sec. 6. RCW 10.77.250 and 1987 c 75 s 1 are each amended to read as follows:

~~((The))~~ (1) Within amounts appropriated, the department shall be responsible for all costs relating to the evaluation and inpatient treatment of persons committed to it pursuant to any provisions of this chapter, and the logistical and supportive services pertaining thereto except as otherwise provided by law. Reimbursement may be obtained by the department pursuant to RCW 43.20B.330.

(2) Within amounts appropriated, the authority shall be responsible for all costs relating to outpatient competency restoration programs.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 7. A new section is added to chapter 10.77 RCW to read as follows:

No officer of a public or private agency, nor the superintendent, professional person in charge, his or her professional designee, or attending staff of any such agency, nor any public official performing functions necessary to the administration of this chapter, nor peace officer responsible for detaining a person pursuant to this chapter, nor the state, a unit of local government, an evaluation and treatment facility, a secure withdrawal management

and stabilization facility, or an approved substance use disorder treatment program shall be civilly or criminally liable for performing duties pursuant to this chapter with regard to the decision of whether to detain a person for medical clearance or treatment, provided that such duties were performed in good faith and without gross negligence.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 8. A new section is added to chapter 10.77 RCW to read as follows:

The authority shall report annually to the governor and relevant committees of the legislature, beginning November 1, 2022, and shall make the report public, describing:

(1) How many individuals are being served by outpatient competency restoration programs and in what locations;

(2) The length of stay of individuals in outpatient competency restoration programs;

(3) The number of individuals who are revoked from an outpatient competency restoration program into inpatient treatment, and the outcomes of other individuals, if any, whose participation in an outpatient competency restoration program were terminated before the completion of the program; and

(4) For individuals who were revoked from an outpatient competency restoration program into an inpatient competency restoration program, how many days the individuals spent in outpatient competency restoration treatment and inpatient competency restoration treatment, and whether the restoration programs resulted in a finding of competent to stand trial or another outcome.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 9. This act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, or safety, or support of the state government and its existing public institutions, and takes effect immediately."

Correct the title.

Representatives Davis and Walsh spoke in favor of the adoption of the striking amendment.

Striking amendment (1326) was adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Davis and Walsh spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5664, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5664, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representative Kraft.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5664, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5793, by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Wilson, C., Trudeau, Das, Dhingra, Hasegawa, Lovelett, Nguyen, Nobles and Saldaña)

Concerning stipends for low-income or underrepresented community members of state boards, commissions, councils, committees, and other similar groups. Revised for 2nd Substitute: Allowing compensation for lived experience on boards, commissions, councils, committees, and other similar groups.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on State Government & Tribal Relations was not adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 45, February 23, 2022).

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Appropriations was before

the House for purpose of amendment. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 50, February 28, 2022).

Representative Chambers moved the adoption of amendment (1317) to the committee striking amendment:

On page 2, beginning on line 1 of the striking amendment, after "groups" strike all material through "43.06D.020" on line 3

On page 2, line 5 of the striking amendment, after "(b)" insert "Subject to available funding, an agency may provide a stipend to an individual who is an owner or employee of a small business to support their participation in class one groups, provided that the individual is not otherwise compensated for their attendance at meetings."

(c) "

Renumber the remaining subsections consecutively and correct any internal references accordingly.

On page 2, beginning on line 35 of the striking amendment, strike all of subsection (5)

Renumber the remaining subsection consecutively and correct any internal references accordingly.

On page 3, after line 6 of the striking amendment, insert "(c) 'Small business' means a business with 10 or fewer employees. A small business does not include a business where the owner is the only employee."

On page 3, beginning on line 7 of the striking amendment, strike all of section 3

Renumber the remaining sections consecutively and correct any internal references accordingly.

Representatives Chambers and Volz spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment to the committee striking amendment.

Representative Valdez spoke against the adoption of the amendment to the committee striking amendment.

Amendment (1317) to the committee striking amendment was not adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representative Lekanoff spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representatives Volz and Dufault spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5793, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5793, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 67; Nays, 31; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Bronoske, Callan, Chapman, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goehner, Goodman, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris-Talley, J. Johnson, Kirby, Kloba, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Walen, Wicks, Wylie, Ybarra and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Boehnke, Caldier, Chambers, Chandler, Chase, Dent, Dufault, Dye, Gilday, Graham, Harris, Hoff, Jacobsen, Klicker, Klippert, Kraft, Kretz, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Orcutt, Paul, Schmick, Sutherland, Vick, Volz, Walsh, Wilcox and Young.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5793, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5736, by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Frockt, Dhingra, Conway, Hasegawa, Honeyford, Keiser, Kuderer, Lovelett, Lovick, Nobles, Randall, Salomon and Stanford)

Concerning partial hospitalizations and intensive outpatient treatment services for minors.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Senn and Stokesbary spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5736.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5736, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 98; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5736, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5750, by Senators Wilson, C. and Kuderer

Designating the Washington state leadership board a trustee of the state of Washington.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Ortiz-Self and Rude spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5750.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5750, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 96; Nays, 2; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter,

Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Chandler and Kraft.

SENATE BILL NO. 5750, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5720, by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Mullet, Frockt, Gildon, Nguyen, Nobles and Randall)

Providing student financial literacy education.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Education was not adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 46, February 24, 2022).

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Appropriations was adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 50, February 28, 2022).

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Stonier, Ybarra and Shewmake spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5720, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5720, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 98; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5720, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5042, by Senators Salomon, Billig, Kuderer, Liias and Wilson, C.

Concerning the effective date of certain actions taken under the growth management act.

The bill was read the second time.

Representative Dye moved the adoption of amendment (1327):

On page 2, after line 22, insert the following:

"Sec. 3. RCW 36.70A.280 and 2011 c 360 s 17 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The growth management hearings board shall hear and determine only those petitions alleging either:

(a) That, except as provided otherwise by this subsection, a state agency, county, or city planning under this chapter is not in compliance with the requirements of this chapter, chapter 90.58 RCW as it relates to the adoption of shoreline master programs or amendments thereto, or chapter 43.21C RCW as it relates to plans, development regulations, or amendments, adopted under RCW 36.70A.040 or chapter 90.58 RCW. Nothing in this subsection authorizes the board to hear petitions alleging noncompliance with *RCW 36.70A.5801;

(b) That the twenty-year growth management planning population projections adopted by the office of financial management pursuant to RCW 43.62.035 should be adjusted;

(c) That the approval of a work plan adopted under RCW 36.70A.735(1) (a) is not in compliance with the requirements of the program established under RCW 36.70A.710;

(d) That regulations adopted under RCW 36.70A.735(1) (b) are not regionally applicable and cannot be adopted, wholly or partially, by another jurisdiction; or

(e) That a department certification under RCW 36.70A.735(1) (c) is erroneous.

(2) A petition may be filed only by: (a) The state, or a county or city that plans under this chapter; (b) ~~((a person who has participated orally or in writing~~

~~before the county or city regarding the matter on which a review is being requested; (e)) a person who is certified by the governor within sixty days of filing the request with the board; or ((d)) (c) a person qualified pursuant to RCW 34.05.530.~~

(3) For purposes of this section "person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, state agency, governmental subdivision or unit thereof, or public or private organization or entity of any character.

~~(4) ((To establish participation standing under subsection (2)(b) of this section, a person must show that his or her participation before the county or city was reasonably related to the person's issue as presented to the board.~~

~~(5))~~When considering a possible adjustment to a growth management planning population projection prepared by the office of financial management, the board shall consider the implications of any such adjustment to the population forecast for the entire state.

The rationale for any adjustment that is adopted by the board must be documented and filed with the office of financial management within ten working days after adoption.

If adjusted by the board, a county growth management planning population projection shall only be used for the planning purposes set forth in this chapter and shall be known as the "board adjusted population projection." None of these changes shall affect the official state and county population forecasts prepared by the office of financial management, which shall continue to be used for state budget and planning purposes."

Correct the title.

Representatives Dye, Boehnke, Dufault, Stokesbary and Walsh spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Representative Fitzgibbon spoke against the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (1327) was not adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Fitzgibbon and Riccelli spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representatives Dye, Stokesbary, Barkis, Dufault, Klicker, Graham, Orcutt, Goehner and Abbarno spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5042.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5042, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 55; Nays, 43; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Bronoske, Callan, Chapman, Chopp, Cody, Davis, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Entenman, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Gregerson, Hackney, Hansen, Harris-Talley, J. Johnson, Kirby, Kloba, Leavitt, Lekanoff, Macri, Morgan, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Ryu, Santos, Sells, Senn, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Stonier, Sullivan, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Walen, Wicks, Wylie and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Boehnke, Caldier, Chambers, Chandler, Chase, Corry, Dent, Dufault, Dye, Eslick, Gilday, Goehner, Graham, Griffey, Harris, Hoff, Jacobsen, Klicker, Klippert, Kraft, Kretz, MacEwen, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Schmick, Shewmake, Steele, Stokesbary, Sutherland, Vick, Volz, Walsh, Wilcox, Ybarra and Young.

SENATE BILL NO. 5042, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

There being no objection, the House reverted to the third order of business.

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

March 3, 2022

Mme. SPEAKER:

The Senate has passed:

HOUSE BILL NO. 1051,
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1795,
SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1818,
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1930,
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 2019,
ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 2096,

and the same are herewith transmitted.

Sarah Bannister, Secretary

The Speaker assumed the chair.

SIGNED BY THE SPEAKER

The Speaker signed the following bills:

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1642
 ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1716
 SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1724
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1833
 SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1867
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1934
 SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1941
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1953
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1974
 HOUSE BILL NO. 2033
 ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 2064
 SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1717
 SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1747
 ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1752
 ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1784
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1888
 SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1980
 SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1984
 HOUSE BILL NO. 2074
 ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1930
 ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1795
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1051
 SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1818
 SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 2019
 ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 2096
 SENATE BILL NO. 5518
 SENATE BILL NO. 5545
 SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5575
 SENATE BILL NO. 5602
 SENATE BILL NO. 5617
 SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5631
 SENATE BILL NO. 5676
 ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 5800
 ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO.
 5815
 ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO.
 5853
 SENATE BILL NO. 5866
 SENATE BILL NO. 5875
 SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5890
 SENATE BILL NO. 5931
 SENATE BILL NO. 5940

The Speaker called upon Representative Orwall to preside.

There being no objection, the House advanced to the sixth order of business.

SECOND READING

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5628, by Senate Committee on Law & Justice (originally sponsored by Dhingra, Frockt, Kuderer, Stanford, Trudeau, Wellman and Wilson, C.)

Concerning cyber harassment, addressing concerns in the case of Rynearson v. Ferguson, and adding a crime of cyberstalking.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Public Safety was before the House for purpose of amendment. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 46, February 24, 2022).

Representative Kraft moved the adoption of amendment (1355) to the committee striking amendment:

On page 2, beginning on line 9 of the striking amendment, after "~~(4)~~" strike all material through "misdemeanor" on line 10 and insert "Cyber harassment is a class C felony"

On page 2, beginning on line 11 of the striking amendment, strike all of subsection (b)

On page 2, beginning on line 32 of the striking amendment, after "under" strike "subsection (2) (b) (iii) or (iv) of"

On page 8, beginning on line 11 of the striking amendment, after "9.61.260" strike "(2) (b) (iii) or (iv)"

On page 8, line 18 of the striking amendment, after "9.61.260" strike "(2) (b) (iii) or (iv)"

On page 8, line 34 of the striking amendment, after "9.61.260" strike "(2) (b) (iii) or (iv)"

On page 9, beginning on line 2 of the striking amendment, after "9.61.260" strike "(2) (b) (iii) or (iv)"

On page 9, beginning on line 8 of the striking amendment, after "9.61.260" strike "(2) (b) (iii) or (iv)"

On page 9, beginning on line 17 of the striking amendment, after "9.61.260" strike "(2) (b) (iii) or (iv)"

On page 10, beginning on line 27 of the striking amendment, after "9.61.260" strike "(2) (b) (iii) or (iv)"

On page 10, line 33 of the striking amendment, after "9.61.260" strike "(2) (b) (iii) or (iv)"

On page 36, at the beginning of line 34 of the striking amendment, strike "(2) (b) (i)"

On page 51, at the beginning of line 38 of the striking amendment, strike "(2) (b) (i)"

On page 64, at the beginning of line 18 of the striking amendment, strike "(2) (b)"

On page 78, at the beginning of line 11 of the striking amendment, strike "(2) (b)"

Representative Kraft spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment to the committee striking amendment.

Representative Goodman spoke against the adoption of the amendment to the committee striking amendment.

Amendment (1355) to the committee striking amendment, was not adopted.

Representative Kraft moved the adoption of amendment (1354) to the committee striking amendment:

On page 2, line 20 of the striking amendment, after "participant" insert ", elected official,"

On page 2, beginning on line 21 of the striking amendment, after "performing" strike all material through "official's" on line 22 and insert "his or her"

On page 2, line 24 of the striking amendment, after "participant" insert ", elected official,"

On page 2, line 26 of the striking amendment, after "participant" insert ", elected official,"

On page 2, beginning on line 27 of the striking amendment, after "performance of" strike all material through "official's" on line 28 and insert "his or her"

Representative Kraft spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment to the committee striking amendment.

Representative Goodman spoke against the adoption of the amendment to the committee striking amendment.

Amendment (1354) to the committee striking amendment, was not adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Hackney, Mosbrucker and Kraft spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill No. 5628, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill No. 5628, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representative Young.

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5628, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5765, by Senate Committee on Health & Long Term Care (originally sponsored by Randall, Keiser, Conway, Das, Hasegawa, Lovelett, Mullet, Nobles, Robinson, Saldaña, Stanford, Trudeau and Wilson, C.)

Concerning the practice of midwifery.

The bill was read the second time.

Representative Caldier moved the adoption of amendment (1316):

On page 2, line 5, after "to" strike "~~((a woman))~~ individuals" and insert "a woman or an individual"

On page 2, line 6, after "or to" strike "~~((her))~~" and insert "her or"

On page 2, line 11, after "the" strike "~~((mother))~~" and insert "mother or"

On page 3, at the beginning of line 16, strike "~~((women))~~" and insert "women or"

On page 3, line 25, after "additional" strike "~~((fifty women))~~" and insert "~~((fifty))~~ 50 women or"

On page 5, line 9, after "of" strike "~~((a woman))~~" and insert "a woman or"

Representatives Caldier and Graham spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Representative Stonier spoke against the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (1316) was not adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representative J. Johnson spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

COLLOQUY

Representative Schmick: "Thank you Madame Speaker. I rise to ask if the Chair of the Healthcare & Wellness Committee will yield to a question?"

Speaker: "Will the good member from the 34th yield to a question from the member from the 9th?"

Representative Cody: "Yes."

Representative Schmick: "The bill creates limited prescriptive license extensions and medical device and implant license extensions authorizing midwives to prescribe, obtain, and administer certain drugs, devices, and implants. To obtain any such license extension a midwife must complete additional study and training. My question relates to abortion. Does this bill authorize midwives to perform abortions?"

Representative Cody: "Thank you for that question. No, this bill does not authorize a midwife to perform abortions. The limited prescriptive license extensions in Section 3 and 6 do not refer to abortion or abortion services. In addition, Section 2 of the bill which defines the practice of midwifery does not refer to abortion or abortion services. The bill does not apply to abortion or abortion services."

Representatives Kraft, Caldier and Graham spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5765.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5765, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 61; Nays, 37; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Bronoske, Callan, Chapman, Chopp, Cody, Davis, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Entenman, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Gregerson, Hackney, Hansen, Harris-Talley, J. Johnson, Kirby, Kloba, Leavitt, Lekanoff, Macri, Morgan, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stonier, Sullivan, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Walen, Wicks, Wylie, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Boehnke, Caldier, Chambers, Chandler, Chase, Corry, Dent, Dufault, Dye, Eslick, Gilday, Goehner, Graham, Griffey, Harris,

Hoff, Jacobsen, Klicker, Klippert, Kraft, Kretz, MacEwen, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Mosbrucker, Robertson, Rude, Schmick, Stokesbary, Sutherland, Volz, Walsh, Wilcox and Ybarra.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5765, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5791, by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Schoesler and Short)

Concerning law enforcement officers' and firefighters' retirement system benefits.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Bronoske and Klippert spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5791.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5791, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 98; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5791, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5558, by Senate Committee on Transportation (originally sponsored by King, Liias and Mullet)

Concerning the bistate governance of interstate toll bridges owned by local governments.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Barkis, Fey, Mosbrucker and Corry spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

MOTION

On motion of Representative Griffey, Representative Kraft was excused.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5558.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5558, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra, Young and Mme. Speaker.

Excused: Representative Kraft.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5558, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5002, by Senators Hunt, Carlyle, Conway, Dhingra, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Mullet, Rivers and Wilson, C.

Addressing the state auditor's duties and procedures.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on State Government & Tribal Relations was adopted. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 43, February 21, 2022).

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representatives Valdez and Volz spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5002, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5002, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 96; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chandler, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dufault, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representative Young.

Excused: Representative Kraft.

SENATE BILL NO. 5002, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5854, by Senators Randall, Hunt, Lovick, Nobles and Wilson, C.

Concerning ethical performance of faculty duties.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Pollet and Chambers spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representative Dufault spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5854.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5854, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 93; Nays, 4; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Callan, Chambers, Chapman, Chase, Chopp, Cody, Corry, Davis, Dent, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Dye, Entenman, Eslick, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goehner, Goodman, Graham, Gregerson, Griffey, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, Hoff, Jacobsen, J. Johnson, Kirby, Klicker, Klippert, Kloba, Kretz, Leavitt, Lekanoff, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McEntire, Morgan, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Robertson, Rude, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Sutherland, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Vick, Volz, Walen, Walsh, Wicks, Wilcox, Wylie, Ybarra and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Chandler, Dufault, McCaslin and Young.

Excused: Representative Kraft.

SENATE BILL NO. 5854, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SENATE BILL NO. 5909, by Senators Randall, Van De Wege, Carlyle, Conway, Hunt, Mullet, Rolfes and Stanford

Concerning legislative oversight of gubernatorial powers concerning emergency proclamations and unanticipated receipts.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the committee striking amendment by the Committee on State Government & Tribal Relations was before the House for purpose of amendment. (For Committee amendment, see Journal, Day 46, February 24, 2022).

Representative Corry moved the adoption of amendment (1336) to the committee striking amendment:

On page 1, line 19, after "affected;" strike "or"

On page 1, line 24, after "representatives" strike "." and insert "; or"

(c) Sixty days after a proclamation of a state of emergency is signed by the governor, unless extended by the legislature through concurrent resolution. If the legislature is not in session, the state of emergency may be extended in writing by three of the four members of the leadership of the senate and the house of representatives until the legislature can extend the state of emergency by concurrent resolution. No

individual extension may exceed 60 days, but the legislature may pass subsequent resolutions of extension and the leadership of the senate and the house of representatives may issue subsequent extensions in writing in accordance with this subsection (3)(c).

(4) "

On page 3, beginning on 21, after "order" strike all material through "of" on line 22 and insert "~~(or orders concerning waiver or suspension of statutory obligations or limitations under subsection (2) of)~~ issued under"

Beginning on page 4, line 1, strike all of sections 3 through 5 and insert the following:

"NEW SECTION. Sec. 3. A new section is added to chapter 43.06 RCW to read as follows:

(1)(a) The joint legislative emergency oversight committee is established, with members as provided in this subsection.

(i) The president of the senate shall appoint three members from the senate, two of whom are members of the largest caucus and one of whom is a member of the second largest caucus of the senate.

(ii) The speaker of the house of representatives shall appoint three members from the house of representatives, two of whom are members of the largest caucus and one of whom is a member of the second largest caucus of the house of representatives.

(b) Initial appointments to the committee must be made no later than 15 days after the effective date of this section. Initial terms shall expire when new members are appointed as provided in (c) of this subsection.

(c) Subsequent appointments shall be made by June 1st of the first year in a legislative biennium. Terms shall expire when new members are appointed in the following biennium, or if the member ceases to serve as a legislator of the chamber from which they were appointed. A committee member may be removed by the president of the senate or the speaker of the house of representatives only if an extraordinary circumstance prevents the member from continuing to serve on the committee. Vacancies shall be filled by December 15th in the same manner as the initial appointment, with terms that last until a subsequent appointment is made in

the first year of the next legislative biennium.

(d) The committee shall choose its chair from among its membership.

(2) The purpose of the committee is to receive specified information about a governor-declared state of emergency that has lasted at least six months. The chair of the committee shall convene a meeting in every March, August, and December during which a state of emergency has been in place for at least six months. The chair may convene additional meetings, so long as the chair specifically identifies the reason that any additional meetings are necessary.

(a) During each committee meeting, the governor, or the governor's designee, shall appear to provide comprehensive information about the current state of emergency and to respond to questions from committee members.

(b)(i) By the first day of the month in which a committee meeting is scheduled to occur, the office of financial management shall submit a report to the committee, and to the appropriate fiscal committees of the legislature, containing the following information:

(A) The amounts and sources of any money transferred to the state general fund, and any other fund in the custody of the state, related to the state of emergency;

(B) The amounts and recipients of any money spent by the state related to the state of emergency;

(C) The total encumbrances from previous states of emergency at the time that the emergency under consideration was declared;

(D) A list of state agencies that have received funding related to the state of emergency, and the amount each agency has received; and

(E) A list of state agencies that have made expenditures related to the state of emergency, and the amount each agency has spent.

(ii) For each category of information listed in this subsection (2)(b), the report must include total amounts since the beginning of the state of emergency as well as amounts since the last report was provided.

(3) Staff support for the committee shall be provided by the senate committee

services and the house of representatives office of program research.

(4) Legislative members of the committee are reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 44.04.120.

(5) The expenses of the committee shall be paid jointly by the senate and the house of representatives. Committee expenditures are subject to approval by the senate facilities and operations committee and the house of representatives executive rules committee, or their successor committees."

Representatives Corry, Dufault, Corry (again), MacEwen, Graham, Stokesbary, Volz, Dent and Kraft spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment to the committee striking amendment.

Representative Valdez spoke against the adoption of the amendment to the committee striking amendment.

There being no objection, the House deferred action on SENATE BILL NO. 5909, and the bill held its place on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5838, by Senate Committee on Human Services, Reentry & Rehabilitation (originally sponsored by Nobles, Rivers, Das, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hunt, Kuderer, Lovelett, Nguyen, Robinson, Saldaña, Stanford, Trudeau and Wilson, C.)

Providing a monthly diaper subsidy for parents or other caregivers receiving temporary assistance for needy families.

The bill was read the second time.

Representative Caldier moved the adoption of amendment (1273):

On page 2, beginning on line 1, after "monthly" strike "diaper subsidy" and insert "voucher to purchase diapers and other child-related necessities"

On page 2, line 9, after "may" strike "make additional monthly payments" and insert "provide vouchers to purchase diapers and other child-related necessities"

On page 2, line 12, after "set the" strike "benefit" and insert "voucher"

On page 2, line 15, after "new" strike "subsidy" and insert "voucher"

On page 2, line 16, after "diaper" strike "subsidy" and insert "voucher"

Representative Caldier spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Representative Peterson spoke against the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (1273) was not adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Frame, Gilday and J. Johnson spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representatives Dufault, Caldier, Sutherland and Chambers spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5838.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5838, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 63; Nays, 35; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Bateman, Berg, Bergquist, Berry, Bronoske, Callan, Chapman, Chopp, Cody, Davis, Dolan, Donaghy, Duerr, Entenman, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Gilday, Goodman, Gregerson, Hackney, Hansen, Harris, Harris-Talley, J. Johnson, Kirby, Kloba, Leavitt, Lekanoff, Macri, Maycumber, Morgan, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Paul, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Rule, Ryu, Santos, Sells, Senn, Shewmake, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Volz, Walen, Wicks, Wylie and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Boehnke, Caldier, Chambers, Chandler, Chase, Corry, Dent, Dufault, Dye, Eslick, Goehner, Graham, Griffey, Hoff, Jacobsen, Klicker, Klippert, Kraft, Kretz, MacEwen, McCaslin, McEntire, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Robertson, Rude, Schmick, Sutherland, Vick, Walsh, Wilcox, Ybarra and Young.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5838, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5528, by Senate Committee on Transportation (originally sponsored by Pedersen, Liias and Hawkins)

Concerning the imposition of additive revenue sources within a regional transit authority area. Revised for 1st Substitute: Concerning the imposition of supplemental revenue sources within a regional transit authority area.

The bill was read the second time.

Representative Stokesbary moved the adoption of amendment (1337):

On page 2, line 2, after "area." insert "An enhanced service zone may not include a city or town that does not allow development of duplexes, triplexes, and fourplexes on all lots zoned for single-family residential uses within one half mile of each transit stop of a regional transit system."

POINT OF ORDER

Representative Stonier requested a scope and object ruling on amendment (1337).

SPEAKER'S RULING

"The title of the bill is an act relating to the imposition of supplemental revenue sources within a regional transit authority area to finance high capacity transportation improvements, serving that area.

The bill permits a regional transit authority to establish one or more enhanced service zones within its boundaries for the purpose of financing improvements to high capacity transportation systems directly benefiting such zones. The bill also permits the authority to levy and collect certain taxes upon approval of the voters.

Amendment (1337) precludes a city or town that prohibits certain kinds of development from inclusion within an enhanced service zone. Local development regulations and zoning are separate and distinct subjects from the question presented in the bill before us—how a regional transit authority finances improvements to a high capacity transportation system.

The Speaker therefore finds and rules that the amendment is outside the scope and object of the bill.

The point of order is well taken."

Representative Chambers moved the adoption of amendment (1346):

On page 2, line 2, after "area." insert "The boundaries of an enhanced service zone must be no more than approximately one half of a mile from the proposed system improvements that benefit the enhanced service zone."

Representative Chambers spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Representative Fey spoke against the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (1346) was not adopted.

Representative Entenman moved the adoption of amendment (1329):

On page 2, line 25, after "zone" strike "shall not materially and unreasonably" and insert "may not"

On page 2, line 27, after "plan" insert ", by more than six months. A regional transit authority may not proceed with the construction of any system improvement or improvements financed by an enhanced service zone prior to providing a report regarding the engineering and financing of each such system improvement to the transportation committees of the legislature that confirms that the system improvement will not delay the estimated completion date of high capacity transportation system improvements contained in an existing voter-approved regional transit plan by more than six months"

Representatives Entenman and Barkis spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (1329) was adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill, as amended by the House, was placed on final passage.

Representative Hackney spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representatives Barkis, Stokesbary, Dufault, Kraft, Orcutt and Walsh spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5528, as amended by the House.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5528, as amended by the House, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 50; Nays, 48; Absent, 0; Excused, 0.

Voting yea: Representatives Bateman, Bergquist, Berry, Callan, Chapman, Chopp, Cody, Davis, Dolan, Duerr, Entenman, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Gregerson, Hackney, Hansen, Harris-Talley, J. Johnson, Kirby, Kloba, Lekanoff, Macri, Morgan, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Peterson, Pollet, Ramel, Ramos, Riccelli, Ryu, Santos, Sells, Senn, Simmons, Slatter, Springer, Stonier, Sullivan, Taylor, Thai, Tharinger, Valdez, Walen, Wicks, Wylie and Mme. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Abbarno, Barkis, Berg, Boehnke, Bronoske, Caldier, Chambers, Chandler, Chase, Corry, Dent, Donaghy, Dufault, Dye, Eslick, Gilday, Goehner, Graham, Griffey, Harris, Hoff, Jacobsen, Klicker, Klippert, Kraft, Kretz, Leavitt, MacEwen, Maycumber, McCaslin, McEntire, Mosbrucker, Orcutt, Paul, Robertson,

Rude, Rule, Schmick, Shewmake, Steele, Stokesbary, Sutherland, Vick, Volz, Walsh, Wilcox, Ybarra and Young.

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5528, as amended by the House, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

There being no objection, the House advanced to the eighth order of business.

MOTION

There being no objection, the Committee on Rules was relieved of the following bills and the bills were placed on the second reading calendar:

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5555
SENATE BILL NO. 5196
SENATE BILL NO. 5817
HOUSE BILL NO. 1846

There being no objection, the House adjourned until 10:00 a.m., March 4, 2022, the 54th Legislative Day of the Regular Session.

LAURIE JINKINS, Speaker

BERNARD DEAN, Chief Clerk

1051	Messages	17	
Speaker Signed		41	
Messages		40	
1052-S	Messages	1	
1122	Messages	1	
1124-S	Messages	1	
1165	Messages	1	
1210-S2	Messages	1	
1280	Messages	1	
1612	Messages	1	
1613	Messages	1	
1619-S	Messages	1	
1623-S	Messages	1	
1626-S	Messages	1	
1642-S	Speaker Signed	41	
	Messages	1	
1649-S	Messages	1	
1669	Messages	1	
1675-S	Messages	1	
1705-S	Messages	1	
1716-S	Speaker Signed	41	
	Messages	1	
1717-S	Speaker Signed	41	
	Messages	17	
1724-S	Speaker Signed	41	
	Messages	1	
1744	Messages	1	
1747-S	Speaker Signed	41	
	Messages	17	
1752	Speaker Signed	41	
	Messages	17	
1755	Messages	1	
1761	Messages	1	
1769	Messages	1	
1784	Speaker Signed	41	
	Messages	17	
	1793-S	Messages	1
	1794-S	Messages	1
	1795-S	Speaker Signed	41
		Messages	40
	1818-S2	Speaker Signed	41
		Messages	40
	1832	Messages	1
	1833	Speaker Signed	41
		Messages	1
	1834	Messages	1
	1846	Other Action	48
	1850	Other Action	8
	1867-S	Speaker Signed	41
		Messages	1
	1874	Messages	1
	1888	Speaker Signed	41
		Messages	17
	1894	Messages	1
	1914	Other Action	8
	1930-S	Speaker Signed	41
		Messages	40
	1934	Speaker Signed	41
		Messages	1
	1941-S	Speaker Signed	41
		Messages	1
	1953	Speaker Signed	41
		Messages	1
	1974	Speaker Signed	41
		Messages	1
	1980-S	Speaker Signed	41
		Messages	17
	1984-S	Speaker Signed	41
		Messages	17
	1988	Other Action	8
	1990	Other Action	8
	2019-S	Speaker Signed	41

Messages.....	40	Third Reading Final Passage.....	44
2033		5565	
Speaker Signed.....	41	Second Reading.....	7
Messages.....	1	Third Reading Final Passage.....	7
2046-S		5575-S	
Messages.....	1	Speaker Signed.....	41
2061		Messages.....	17
Messages.....	1	5589-S	
2064-S		Second Reading.....	5
Speaker Signed.....	41	Third Reading Final Passage.....	6
Messages.....	1	5593-S	
2068-S		Second Reading.....	14
Messages.....	1	Third Reading Final Passage.....	15
2074		Other Action.....	8
Speaker Signed.....	41	5600-S2	
Messages.....	17	Second Reading.....	24
2096		Third Reading Final Passage.....	25
Speaker Signed.....	41	5602	
Messages.....	40	Speaker Signed.....	41
2135		Messages.....	17
Introduction & 1st Reading.....	1	5616-S2	
5002		Second Reading.....	14
Second Reading.....	44	Third Reading Final Passage.....	14
Third Reading Final Passage.....	44	Other Action.....	8
5042		5617	
Second Reading.....	39	Speaker Signed.....	41
Amendment Offered.....	39	Messages.....	17
Third Reading Final Passage.....	40	5628-S	
5196		Second Reading.....	41
Other Action.....	48	Amendment Offered.....	41, 42
5268-S		Third Reading Final Passage.....	42
Other Action.....	17	5631-S	
5504		Speaker Signed.....	41
Second Reading.....	5	Messages.....	17
Third Reading Final Passage.....	5	5634	
5505		Other Action.....	8
Other Action.....	8	5644-S	
5508		Other Action.....	17
Second Reading.....	6	5649-S2	
Third Reading Final Passage.....	6	Second Reading.....	8
5510		Amendment Offered.....	8
Other Action.....	8	Third Reading Final Passage.....	9
5518		5657	
Speaker Signed.....	41	Second Reading.....	14
Messages.....	17	Third Reading Final Passage.....	14
5528-S		Other Action.....	8
Second Reading.....	47	5664-S2	
Amendment Offered.....	47	Second Reading.....	25
Third Reading Final Passage.....	48	Amendment Offered.....	25
5529		Third Reading Final Passage.....	37
Second Reading.....	4	5676	
Third Reading Final Passage.....	5	Speaker Signed.....	41
5539		Messages.....	17
Second Reading.....	6	5687	
Third Reading Final Passage.....	7	Second Reading.....	7
5545		Amendment Offered.....	7
Speaker Signed.....	41	Third Reading Final Passage.....	7
Messages.....	17	5715	
5555-S		Second Reading.....	25
Other Action.....	48	Third Reading Final Passage.....	25
5558-S		5720-S2	
Second Reading.....	43	Second Reading.....	39

Third Reading Final Passage	39	Second Reading.....	11
5722-S		Third Reading Final Passage	12
Second Reading	17	5838-S	
Amendment Offered	17, 23, 24	Second Reading.....	46
Third Reading Final Passage	24	Amendment Offered.....	46
5728-S		Third Reading Final Passage	47
Other Action	17	5844	
5729-S		Other Action.....	17
Second Reading	13	5847-S	
Amendment Offered	13	Second Reading.....	12
Third Reading Final Passage	14	Third Reading Final Passage	13
Other Action	8	Other Action.....	8
5736-S2		5853-S	
Second Reading	38	Speaker Signed.....	41
Third Reading Final Passage	38	Messages	17
5750		5854	
Second Reading	38	Second Reading.....	44
Third Reading Final Passage	39	Third Reading Final Passage	45
5756-S		5866	
Other Action	17	Speaker Signed.....	41
5764-S2		Messages	17
Second Reading	3	5874-S	
Third Reading Final Passage	3	Second Reading.....	5
5765-S		Third Reading Final Passage	5
Second Reading	42	5875	
Amendment Offered	42	Speaker Signed.....	41
Third Reading Final Passage	43	Messages	17
Colloquy	43	5878-S	
5785-S		Second Reading.....	2
Second Reading	4	Amendment Offered.....	2
Third Reading Final Passage	4	Third Reading Final Passage	3
5788		5883-S	
Second Reading	10	Second Reading.....	15
Third Reading Final Passage	11	Amendment Offered.....	15, 16
5789-S2		Third Reading Final Passage	17
Second Reading	3	5890-S	
Third Reading Final Passage	4	Speaker Signed.....	41
5790-S		Messages	17
Second Reading	11	5895	
Third Reading Final Passage	11	Second Reading.....	8
5791-S		Third Reading Final Passage	8
Second Reading	43	5907-S	
Third Reading Final Passage	43	Other Action.....	8
5793-S2		5909	
Second Reading	37	Second Reading.....	45
Amendment Offered	37	Amendment Offered.....	45
Third Reading Final Passage	38	Other Action.....	46
5800		5929	
Speaker Signed	41	Second Reading.....	9
Messages.....	17	Amendment Offered.....	9
5814-S		Third Reading Final Passage	10
Second Reading	13	5931	
Third Reading Final Passage	13	Speaker Signed.....	41
Other Action	8	Messages	17
5815-S		5933-S	
Speaker Signed	41	Second Reading.....	12
Messages.....	17	Third Reading Final Passage	12
5817		Other Action.....	8
Other Action	48	5940	
5818-S		Speaker Signed.....	41
Other Action	17	Messages	17
5819-S		5972	

Second Reading15
 Third Reading Final Passage15
 Other Action8
 8006
 Other Action17
 HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
 Personal Privilege, Representative Griffey8
 HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES (Representative
 Bronoske presiding)

Statement for the Journal Representative Dufault 3
 HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES (Representative Orwall
 presiding)
 Point of Order
 Representative Stonier - Scope Amendment (1337). 47
 SPEAKER OF THE HOUSE (Representative Orwall
 presiding)
 Speaker's Ruling
 Scope - Amendment (1337)..... 47

Draft